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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial data
(expressed in HK$000)

Turnover
Gross profit
Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
Total borrowings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

BTIRA Staff costs
BRAATEE AL Net asset attributable to owners
FEEECGET) (M) of the Company per share (HK$) (note /)

Bt = Financial ratios

BN R (M5t 2) Current ratio (note 2)

REN K (M52 3) Quick ratio (note 3)

BEL XMt 4) Gearing ratio (note 4)

B aE - Note:

I BRARA YN EE L. Net asset attributable
EEA - HAA T BEA to owners of the
EEFEEE b Rt A Company per share

2 nBHE = RPEE T RBAR 2 Current ratio

3. REILE = (RBEE-FE) + NBHEE 3 Quick ratio

NG
4 BfEkE = [BEEE T BEA 4, Gearing ratio
JEfh s

2011

406,285
24,555

[1,472
1,326,948
1,724,024

96,540

52,882

0434

|42
[0
77%

Equity attributable
= toowners

of the Company

= Current assets

= Total borrowings

= (Current assets - Inventories) -

2012 2013
989,885 1,329,644
(20471) 24,077
26,598 39,022
1,836,702 1,954,706
1,783,907 1,893,789
73,994 30,459
95,177 89,824
0.449 0.477
[.33 1.35
[.01 1.15
103% 103%
Number of

~—  issued shares

at year end
=+ Current liabilities
Current liabilities

Equity attributable
~  toownersof the

Company
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “"Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2013 is

summarized as follows.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2013, the Group's turnover for the year 2013 amounted
to HK$1,329.64 million as compared to that of 2012 of HK$989.89 million,
representing HK$339.75 million or 34.3% increase in turnover; the profit
attributable to the Company's owners for the year amounted to of HK$39.02
million as compared to that of 2012 of HK$26.60 million, representing 46.7%
increase. The turnover for the year comprised sales of wind energy related
products of HK$I,136.58 million, sales of electricity generated from wind
farms of HK$31.91 million, sales of rare-earth permanent-magnet motor
products of HK$44.66 million, sales of chemical materials of HK$82.79 million
and sales of HK$33.70 million related to telecommunication business, whereas
the turnover in 2012 comprised sales of wind energy related products of
HK$734.69 million, sales of electricity generated from wind farms of HK$29.43
million, sales of rare-earth permanent-magnet motor products of HK$31.26
million, sales of chemical materials of HK$166.79 million and sales of HK$27.72
million related to telecommunication business. The increase in turnover
was mainly due to the increase in sales of the Group's wind energy related
products by HK$401.89 million, representing an increase of 54.7% year-on-
year, with wind turbines sold in 2013 increased by 34 sets of 2MW wind
turbines and 88 sets of |.5MW wind turbines.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business of Wind Energy

In 2013, the directdrive wind turbine developed by the Group with proprietary
intellectual property rights participated in fierce competition in the domestic
market which is currently a buyers’ market, and was highly recognized by wind
farm developers within the industry for its simple structure, high reliability, high
efficiency and low operation and maintenance costs. The Group continued
to give full play to the advantages of technology, quality and service of
CASC directdrive wind turbines. On this basis, the Group capitalised on its
products’ leading edge and achieved cost control by adopting the strategy
of technology enhancement and batch production through research and
development, thereby achieving high supply chain performance and enhanced
cost effectiveness to proactively address challenges. Through Inner Mongolia
Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant and Gansu Wind Turbine General
Assembling Plant, the Group realized mass production of a number of self-
developed models (especially |.5SMW excitation magnetic directdrive wind
turbine, 2MW permanent-magnet directdrive wind turbine and 2MW
excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbine), and adopted the strategy
of establishing good relationship with several provincial and autonomous
regions’ governments to gain their supports and leveraging on provincial and
autonomous regions’ quotas for wind energy to obtain more wind resources
in seeking more production orders for wind turbines, thereby increasing our
market share. At present, the Group has considerable wind energy resources in
various major wind power bases planned by the State, including Wulatehougi
in Inner Mongolia, Jiuquan City and Wuwei City in Gansu, Ningde City in Fujian,
as well as Tieling City and Kaiyuan City in Liaoning, Suihua City in Heilongjiang
and Tangshan City in Hebei, effective pushing sales of wind turbines and

bringing in promising income to the Group continually.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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In 2013, the marketing strategy was adjusted. The Group's wind power
operations were expanding gradually in scale, while the industrial layout tended
to rationalise, with gradual improvements in technology and product series,
and performance of products was gradually stabilized. Under such new trends,
the strategy of “walking on two legs” was implemented, while exchanging
resources for orders developing and maintaining key areas and key customers,
we also participated in market competition on a large scale to expand the

sales regions and increase our sales efforts.
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The Group had formulated market development strategies for key regions

and key customers. As of to date, in terms of customers, the Group has
established more stable and secure business relationship with large power
companies such as Huadian, Guodian and Datang, all of which have become
our key customers. In terms of sales regions, the Group has made substantial
progress in the key regions of Inner Mongolia, Gansu and Liaoning, paving a

solid foundation for future developments.
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Since the directdrive wind turbines are characterized by gearless drive, the
use of low-speed large-torque generators, full-power convertor and strong
resistance to grid voltage fluctuations, their advantages include low wear
and tear, high efficiency of electricity generation, small size, light weight, easy
to maintain and low operating cost when compared to the traditional wind
turbines. As such, the directdrive wind turbines, in particular, the 1.5MW and
2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines being launched mainly
by the Group from now onwards have visible optimism in the market. In
addition, the AC-DC-AC total inverter grid-connection technology employed
by directdrive wind turbines can meet the standards under the “Design
regulations for grid-connection technology of large-scale wind farms” issued
by National Energy Administration in 2011, which provided a series of
requirements such as low-voltage ride-through, grid compatibility and power

test, bringing rare opportunities to the Group's wind turbine business.

In 2013, the Group completed the assembling, commissioning and delivery of
50 sets of 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines to Huadian New Energy in
Yumen City in Gansu for recognizing the sales thereof. In addition, the Group
recognized sales upon deliveries made of 231 sets of [.5SMW wind turbines

produced in batch.

In April 2013, the Group, according to strategy of focusing on our Group's
main products of [.5MW and 2MW excitation directdrive wind turbines,
reduced resources on development and production of 2MW double-fed wind
turbines in reducing appointing | director to the board of Suzhou Energine
Tepu Wind Energy Technology Co. Ltd. (“Suzhou Wind Energy”), a 41.28%
equity subsidiary to appointing 2 directors, being less than half of the 5-director

board. Suzhou Wind Energy accordingly became an associate of the Group.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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Research and Development of Technology

In early 2013, the research
on storage technology was
established as a project,
researching on graphene
extraction technology in an effort
to realize batch production of
high-quality graphene and high-
performance energy storage
battery pack leveraging on
such proprietary technology.
Graphene, a kind of new material
with singular flake structure
composed of carbon atoms,
is one of the best conductive

materials in the world. The

cathode material of lithium ion
battery made by graphene is
able to significantly increase the energy storage capacity and shorten charging
time of the battery, thus effectively resolving the bottleneck problem of
applying lead-acid battery and traditional lithium ion battery to electric vehicles
and others. The energy storage device of graphene features extra-long
recycling life and high current during the process of charging and discharging,
therefore there is huge market room as to graphene-based new battery
cathode material and super capacitor under the research and development.
In the meantime, the Company's Energy Storage Technology Research and
Development Centre in Beijing has achieved a breakthrough progress on
anode and cathode materials mass production, wind and solar power storage
integration application, storage system integration and
energy management, battery production processing,
super capacitor for aerospace and industry, including the
cathode capacity of the Company's graphene battery
being more than double that of the best lithium batteries
in the market; and our electrolyte can adapt to a
working environment under 20, ensuring the battery
efficiency to maintain at over 75% and over 50% under

the environment of -20C and -40C respectively.
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As to lithium battery research, the Energy Storage Centre has possessed the
research and development capacity as to production of laminate polymer
battery, conducting research and development of production of a high-
performance and powerful lithium iron phosphate battery comprising anode
and cathode materials and electrolyte through its laboratory; it is researching
on, and testing, a lithium iron phosphate battery being applied to wind turbines
of variable pitch. In applying such a battery pack, the variable pitch battery can
last for 5 years without the need for replacement.

In 2013, the comprehensive technological capacity of the Group’s technology
research and development team has been significantly enhanced. Compatibility
designs and relevant technology conditions of wind turbines for Gansu
Mahuangtan wind farm, Fujian Xiapu wind farm, Gansu Mingin wind farm and
Gaizhou wind farm were confirmed during the year, and the compatibility
designs of 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines equipped with different
blade-rotary diameters catered for different wind conditions were completed.
In particular, the improvement research on low wind speed regions had been
commenced; the improved and optimized proposal on basic prototype relating
to 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbine was completed; and the improved
generator prototype had been successfully researched and developed, with
the relevant tests completed. In combining with the Fujian Xiapu project, the
design of 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines catered for special technical
conditions such as seaside locations, earthquake-resistant and typhoon-resistant
series was confirmed. The wind turbine design with different blade-rotary
diameters ranging from 90 meters to |10 meters was completed, enriching
the list of 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines and broadening the market

applications.

By improving the wind turbine enhancement design techniques based on the
ABAQUS, SOLIDWORKS and BLADED software, theoretic models of analog
calculation software for the wind turbines with different loads and calculation
models for wind farms with different wind conditions were established;
domestic production of software, hardware and control strategy optimization
for the primary control, variable pitch and SCADA system were completed,

and the Chinese localization of MITA control system was also completed.

In early 2013, a research and development project on 3MW permanent-
magnet direct-drive wind turbine was started. Currently, the technical
development route and preliminary implementation plan for the 3MW
permanent magnet wind turbines have been confirmed; the concept design of
3MW wind turbines and preliminary survey and research on the market for
ancillary wind turbine components has been completed on schedule, and the

whole plan design for 3SMW wind turbines have been completed.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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In 2013, we have strengthened the efforts in coordination management, and
completed the low penetration tests for two types of [.5MW excitation
magnetic converters and four types of 2MW excitation magnetic converter
configuration, thereby fully achieving the annual targets in providing a basic

assurance for wind turbine sales and deliveries.

In 2013, the Group's telecommunication business, as encouraged by China's
state policies, invested funds in the research and development of Beidou GPS

terminal technology.

Production Management

In 2013, the Group proceeded cost control rigorously with strengthened
analyses on wind turbine costing. By conducting on-site research, survey and
study, price searches and comparisons across the whole state, the purchasing
costs of various components of wind turbines were further reduced on the
pre-condition of quality assurance, in particular, the purchasing cost of primary
control units produced domestically was reduced by more than [6%. Whilst
reducing prices, we have achieved breakthrough improvements on critical
commercial terms, such as warranty extension and after-sales service quality
improvement, to strive for maximized benefits for the Group. Supply chain
management was enhanced through implementing the system of conducting
appraisals and dynamic assessments on eligible suppliers and establishing a

management structure for eligible suppliers.
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Trading of Materials

In 2013, BEI continued the trading business of chemical raw materials.

Wind Farm Operations

The Group's wind farm operations comprise a wind farm controlled and
operated by the Group: the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi) wind farm of Liaoning
Benxi, installed with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of
24,650KW; three wind farms invested and constructed by the Group: the
Jilin Tongyu wind farm of Jilin Longyuan, installed with 236 sets of 850KW
wind turbines with a capacity of 200,000KW; the Jiangsu Rudong wind farm
of Jiangsu Longyuan, installed with 100 sets of [.5SMW wind turbines with a
capacity of 150,000KW and the Datang Wanyuan Xinghe wind farm of Inner
Mongolia Xinghe, installed with 55 sets of 900KW directdrive wind turbines
with a capacity of 49,500KW.

In addition, Energine Min Jian New Energy Investment Co,, Ltd, the Group's
associated company, formally engaging in offshore and land wind power
projects in eastern Fujian through its subsidiary, Yingkou Wind Power

Generation Co,, Ltd, secured market orders for the Group for the purchase

of 2MW directdrive wind turbine makes produced by the Group.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Business of New Materials

Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Co,, Ltd, controlled and operated
by the Group, is a high-tech enterprise which specializes in the research
and development, manufacture, and sales of rare-earth permanent-magnet
gearless traction machines for elevators. The “fi A& R branded rare-earth
permanent-magnet gearless traction machines and its driving control system
researched and developed by the company itself had filled the technological
gap of the domestic gearless elevator sector.

Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali Electricity Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Generator Plant”),
the Group's associated company, is engaged in batch production of 900KW
and |.5MW generators. Its self-developed |.5MW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind power generator, with application of many new technologies,
was awarded the First Prize of Outstanding Contribution to Science and
Technology Progress in 2011 by CALT. Therefore, the Group is equipped
with the internal capacity to supply core parts and components of wind
turbines, including blades and generators, thereby reducing its reliance on
upstream suppliers of the wind turbine supply chain for purchasing generators

and controlling the supply risk of the wind turbine supply chain and production

cost.

TEMABRER(KE) BRAF
2013 F 3§
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Business of Automotive Component Parts

Automotive engine management systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a joint
venture, is a leading supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel
injection market with a stable market share, ranking the second nationwide
and supplies to almost all major domestic automobile manufacturers. As for
export sales, its products are sold to automobile manufacturers in Europe and
North America.

The joint venture recorded sales revenue of HK$3,397.75 million in 2013,

representing an increase of HK$43.97 million year-on-year. Its sales expansion

and costs reduction were successfully achieved.
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Automotive sealing systems

Beijing Wanyuan-Henniges Sealing Systems Co., Ltd. (“Wanyuan-Henniges"),
a joint venture, is a company specializing in manufacturing of medium-to-high
class automotive sealing products in the domestic market. Its quality control
standards are on par with the international advanced level. The joint venture
not only realized the development and ancillary items to the medium-to-high
class models in the domestic market, but also attained the system standards
applicable to Germany, France, United States, Japan and South Korea with its
products.

The joint venture recorded sales revenue of HK$1,122.39 million in the period
to 24 December 2013 in 2013, representing an increase of HK$358.91 million

year-on-year.
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On 24 December, the Group disposed all 40% entity of Wanyuan-Henniges
to the other joint venture party, Henniges Automotive Sealing Systems
North America, Inc. at the sum of RMB217 million, for realizing the capital
appreciation of Wanyuan-Henniges and procuring working capital for the
Group for the expansion of its core business of manufacture and sales of wind

turbines. The disposal generated a gain of HK$ 132 million.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group always lives up to its corporate culture: we have been devoted to
projects on new energy, energy conservation and environmental protection in
the areas of renewable power generation, energy storage and carbon emission
control, by adhering to the principles of protecting the Earth and ecological
environment persistently and our mission of contributing to society and
benefiting mankind. Relentless efforts have been made to pursue excellence
in quality in research and development and production of wind turbines so
as to strengthen the CASC brand and eamn customers’ trust. In the aspect of
management, risk management and compliance system were strengthened to
ensure sustainable development. Employees' talents were fully utilized with a
win-win strategy for harmony to nurture an outstanding corporate team in the

course of fully fulfilling our social responsibilities.

In 2013, with our target to develop a high-quality professional team, we
proceeded with the establishment of an employment qualification system in
a systematic manner. The Group used technology research and development
centre as pilot point to implement the establishment of a technology research
and development staff employment qualification system, which preliminarily
utilized the outcome of the employment qualification system on staff
recruitment, career development and performance evaluation, facilitating the
alignment of value creation with remuneration incentives, and organizing the
establishment of a team of talented staff. Training for front-line operation
and maintenance staff were strengthened by organizing front-line operation
and maintenance staff to join various low voltage and high voltage electrician
trainings. In order to improve standardized management of the Group's
supply-chain system, we have organized staff to join quality control training
and purchasing management training held by Beijing Win-Star Company, and
improved the comprehensive quality and vocational skills of the relevant staff;
pilot schemes for the prevention and control of probity risk and strengthening

of the anti-corruption and ethics system were also implemented.
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PROSPECTS

Serious air pollution has been spread as a national issue and becomes a
stimulating or driving force to the PRC government. It is expected that
administrative measures for non-hydro new energy quota will be launched
in 2014 by the government, laying the foundation for sustainable and healthy
development of wind energy. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to
improve the progress in domestic production of wind turbines, with focus on
the development of 3MW and 5MW wind turbines in line with the Twelfth
Five-year Plan, to capture the future market share of wind turbines and
consolidate cooperation opportunities with other large-scale power generation
groups, focus our efforts primarily on developing new markets for graphene
energy storage technology devices, refine the batch production of rare-earth
motors and secure financing for the Group. We will further expand the scale
of energy conservation and environmental protection business as well as
strengthen our internal management to ensure the sustainable development of
the Group and create greater benefits for shareholders with wealth creation

and good reputation.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 3| December 2013, the Group had 27 employees (2012: 33 employees)
in the Hong Kong head office and 558 employees (2012: 674 employees)
in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is determined
according to individual employee’s performance and the prevailing trends in
different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides
Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition,

discretionary performance bonus is available at the discretion of the Directors.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013 were
HK$1,954,706,000 (2012: HK$1,836,702,000), of which HK$ 123,111,000
(2012: HK$530,048,000) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was
fixed-rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or other

purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders equity) as at 31 December
2013 was 103% (2012: 103%).

Pledge of Assets

As at 3| December 2013, certain assets of the Group of HK$9,312,000 (2012:
HK$24,947,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.

Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 3| December 2013, the Group has issued a guarantee to a bank
in respect of a banking facility with an amount of HK$44,518,000 (2012:
HK$24,665,000) granted to an associate, of which HK$25,439,000 (2012:
HK$24,665,000) has been utilized, and has issued a guarantee to a third
party with an amount of HK$6,258,000 (2012: Nil). In 2012, the Group had
issued a guarantee to a bank in respect of a banking facility with an amount of
HK$22,573,000 granted to a third party, which has expired in 2013.
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors and all the
staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year under review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 49, researcher, obtained his Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and Master degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively. He
is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved the Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC"). He
served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant
and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation Control of
China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") between 1988 and
1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997, Director of
Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan
Industry Corporation in 1999, and President Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since
2002, he has served as Vice President of CALT. In parallel, he has also been a
Director of Aisino Co,, Ltd. (“Aisino”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for November 2000 to April 201 1. Possessing rich experiences
in strategic research and business administration, he was appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006
and became the Chairman on 26 October 2007. He is also a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 46, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989 to
1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under
the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the Comprehensive
Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then
the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,
Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum Deputy Director
of the President’s Office. In 1999, he, possessing extensive experience in
research and management, was appointed the Executive Director cum Deputy
General Manager of China Aerospace Interational Holdings Limited (“CAI").
He has been appointed as Managing Director (later becoming Executive
Director cum General Manager) of the Company since May 1999 and became
the Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the Company on 26 August

2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 51, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on 14 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.
In parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech Group Ltd. (“Astrotech”), the
Company's controlling shareholder since 8 August 2010. Astrotech is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CALT. He was re-designated as Executive Director
and appointed as CEO on 6 March 2012. He has also been a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Lijun, aged 41. Mr. Wang Lijun graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a Bachelor degree with major in Industrial Accounting
and National University of Defense Technology with a Master degree in
Management. He was qualified as an Accountant in PRC in May 1999. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Chief Accountant with Beijing CASC Wan
Yuan Science & Technology Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT.
He was appointed as Financial Controller of the Company on [0 May 2008.
He was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.
He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Shili, aged 40, graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor
degree in Law and obtained a Master degree in Finance from Renmin
University of China. Since he joined CALT in 1995, he has served as Auditor,
Deputy Director with the Second Division in Audit Office, Director of
Consolidated Finance Division, Deputy Chief, Chief of the Finance Department
and Chief Accountant. He was qualified as a Lawyer and as a Certified
Accountant in 1997 and a registered Tax Agent in 2007 in PRC. In parallel, he
has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.
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Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 53, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with an Executive Master degree in Business Administration. She
had been the Officer Assistant, Officer and General Manager with the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre (“CAECC") successively during
2003 to 2007; the Deputy General Manager with Beijing Control Technology
Co. Ltd. under, and the Chief Engineer with the Business Investment and
Industry Development Department of, CAST. She has been the Deputy Chief
of Business and Investment Development of CALT since 2010, possessing rich
experience in engineering consuftancy, market exploitation, project operation
and business management. Both CAECC and CAST are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CASC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dechen, aged 74, graduated with a bachelor degree from
Harbin Institute of Military Technology (formerly Chinese People’s Liberation
Army Military Engineering Institute), was a committee member of the [0th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress. He served as the Assistant
Director, Director, Deputy Dean, Vice President, Deputy Secretary to the
Party Committee of Nanjing Eastern China Engineering College between
1966 and 1985. He acted as Secretary of Education of the Ministry of China
Weapon Industry Ministry’s National Mechanical Committee in 1985. He
served as Deputy General Manager of China North Industries Group in 1988
to 1990 and of China Weapon Industry Corp. in 1990 to 1996. He served
as General Manager and Secretary to the Party Secretary of China South
Industries Group Corp. from July 1999. From December 2003 onwards, he
acted as the Senior Consultant thereof. From July 2004 to December 2009,
he was an Independent Director of Aisino, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. With rich experience in strategic management and corporate
restructuring, Mr. Wang is the senior expert in Chinese advanced equipment
manufacturing industry and automotive industry. Also, Mr. Wang is an active
advocate and experienced expert in China environmental protection and clean
energy field. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
23 January 2008, reappointed on 23 January 2011 and 23 January 2014 for a

tenure of 3 years each.
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 59, is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). She
is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has over 20 years
of experience in corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity
and debt markets. She held various senior positions in international and local
banks and financial institutions and is currently a controlling shareholder and
the Managing Director of each of Asia Investment Management Ltd. (“AlIM")
and Asia Investment Research Ltd. (“AIR"), both companies are licensed
corporations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). Ms.
Kan is a licensed investment adviser under the SFO and a registered officer of
Lotus Asset Management Ltd. and of AIM and AIR. Ms. Kan is and was also
an Independent Non-executive Director of each of Regal Hotels International
Holdings Ltd., Cosmopolitan International Holdings Ltd., G-Vision International
(Holdings) Ltd. (“G-Vision™”), Sunway International Holdings Ltd. (“Sunway"),
Shimao Property Holdings Ltd., Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Ltd., Shougang Concord Technology Holdings Ltd. (“Shougang
Tech") and Sunac China Holdings Ltd. (“Sunac China"), all of which are
companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and AVIC Interational
Investments Ltd, a company listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Ltd. She retired from those offices of Shougang Tech and G-Vision and Sunway
on 8 June 2010, Il August 2011 and 28 February 2013 respectively and
resigned from that of Sunac China on 8 June 201 I. She was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on

23 January 2011 and 23 January 2014 for a tenure of 3 years each.

Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 49, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital
Market, Asia of the Hong Kong Office of an international law firm since July
2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood,
Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan & Hartson,
Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on

23 January 2011 and 23 January 2014 for a tenure of 3 years each.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li You, aged 49, senior engineer. Graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a bachelor degree in Electronic Material and
Component Specialized Technology, he has studied courses in economics,
banking, finance and business management of engineering management
research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since 1986, he successively
served in Beijing Telemetering Technical Research Institute, CALT's Political
Division, Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development Department as
Deputy Director, Comprehensive Management Director in which he was
engaged in special case development, technical division management, public
relation management, and civil assets integrative management work. In 2003,
he served as Deputy Chief of Investment Management Department in
CALT, responsible for CALT's civil assets planning management, corporate
management, capital restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having
possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry management,
he was appointed as a Vice President (formerly known as Deputy General
Manager) of the Company on |6 March 2007. He was appointed as Executive
Vice President of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Xu Jianhua, aged 45, a senior economist, graduated from China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor's degree in law in
1992 and was a qualified lawyer in the PRC in 1994. He had been the
Deputy Director, Director and Deputy Chief of CASC's Human Resources
Department, and the Director of China Spacesat Technology Co., Ltd.
successively. He was the Executive Director, Vice President, of CAl from
March 2004 to April 2011 and the Vice President of Shanghai Aerospace
Holding (Hong Kong) Ltd. from April 2011 to April 2013 . He was appointed
as a Vice President of the Company on 8 November 201 3.
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Mr. Chen Wei Nong, aged 57, senior engineer, graduated from Zhejiang
University with a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Processes and
Equipment. Since 1980, he successively served in Beijing Jian Hua Electronic
Instrument Factory of CALT as workshop craftsman, designer, Deputy Director
of Technology Division, Deputy Chief of Testing and Control Studio and
Deputy Factory Manager of the Factory. He served as Deputy Chief Engineer
of Yuan Wang Group from 1999 to 2003. From 2003 to 2010, he successively
served as General Manager Project Assistant, and Deputy General Manager
of Beijing Energine Co. Ltd. He has served as Chief Engineer of the Company
since June 2008. He was appointed as a Vice President of the Company on 26

August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 49, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing LM Hi-Tech
Development Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of the
Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President of the
Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries

of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 47, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. During November
2001 to July 2003, he studied at the Research Centre for Intelligent Machines,
McGill University in Canada in obtaining a Master's degree of engineering.
From July 2003, he successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the
Manager of Wind Power Research and Development Department of Beijing
Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant
of the Company from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Au-Yeung Keung, Steve. Mr. Au-Yeung graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Master of Science degree in Electronic
Commerce and Internet Computing, the City University of Hong Kong
with a LLM degree in Chinese and Comparative Law and the University of
London with a LLB degree with honours. He is a fellow member of both the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and HKICPA. He began his
career in being an auditing professional with an international accounting firm
and had extensive experience in accounting, auditing, financial management
and company secretarial practice in Hong Kong and PRC prior to joining
the Company. Mr. Au-Yeung was appointed as the Company Secretary and
authorized representative of the Company on | June 2006. He has also been
the Head of Internal Audit of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the Corporate Governance Code
(“the CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2013 and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the

date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and

enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013
save the following.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, except that Independent Non-executive Directors are of a fixed
term of 3 years, but are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election
at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the
retirement provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken in this regard to
ensure that the Group's corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2013 comprises the following Directors :

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Lijun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20 and 26 of
this Annual Report. The Directors are unrelated to each other in every aspect

including financial, business or family.

The Board meets regularly and Board Meetings are held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of
the year are scheduled in advance and at least |4 days’ notice is given to
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of a
conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of which

all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
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Eight Board Meetings and an AGM and an Extraordinary General Meeting
were held during the year ended 31 December 2013. The attendance record
of each Director at the said meetings during the year ended 31 December
2013 is set out below -

HE/BITEERY
Number of Meetings Attended/Held
4 RRAFAE RREBAE
Board Annual  Extraordinary

Meetings General Meeting General Meeting

HiTES Executive Directors

BRI SE(EER) Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 8/8 /] /1
TBEREE(GEER)  Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman) 8/8 /1 /1
THEE Mr. Li Guang 8/8 [/1 [/1
IHELRAE Mr. Wang Lijun 8/8 /1 /1
FHITES Non-executive Directors

paiubites Mr. Fang Shil 4/8 o/ /1
REERZ T Ms. Zhang Jianhua 7/8 1/l 1/
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

TEREAE Mr. Wang Dechen 8/8 /1 /1
BBELt Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 8/8 /1 /1
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng 718 /1 /1

EXZSRRAMEREZERENEE  BR
(BB EREBREEBER HEBHD
B FEEE  XBERIANMBERER - HK
PERENE BRAEWBRULESZE K
B BAHEARAE SEABERIZ B
T REREERR  UWRBEERS -

EXeCRREEERAEENTRRBEZA
B BRBARR)EERRERESSM
REZKBER AR HEREBBA /B2
FH - URERRBREE 2 ARPERHIE -

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained
for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term
objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial
statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as

connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper intemnal controls and

systems.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties and
the Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance Functions of the Board was
adopted on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:-

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") are
separate and are performed by different individuals so as to ensure a clear
division between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
CEO's responsibility to manage the Company's business. In 2013, Mr. Han
Shuwang was the Chairman, and Mr. Li Guang was the CEQ, of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three Independent Non-executive Directors. During
the year ended 3| December 2013, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
in appointment of a sufficient number of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, representing one third of the Board, one of whom has appropriate

professional qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors is independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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HESEEREY Continuous Professional Development Programme

EEWMABKERRIFAAGHARKEES  The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
ARKRAAELER - TREFIBEENR-F  their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
—ZERBNEELMAREEAL  BEX  The participation by individual directors in the continuous professional
BECEXERREDHDELE - development programme with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions

and duties of a director of a listed company in 2013 is recorded in the table

below.
BITES Executive Directors
T Mr. Han Shuwang
THER Mr. Wang Xiaodong
= Mr. Li Guang
THE Mr. Wang Lijun
EHTES Non-executive Directors
FitEH Mr. Fang Shili
REEE Ms. Zhang Jianhua
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive

Directors

IR Mr. Wang Dechen
HREE Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
RER Mr. Gordon Ng

M
REEHER SRBERED
Reading Attending
regulatory development
updates programmes
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised five members and was chaired

by Mr. Wang Dechen, an Independent Non-executive Director, with Mr.
Li Guang, an Executive Director and CEO, Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon

Ng, Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Jianhua, a Non-

executive Director as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee updated on 30
March 2012 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main

duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

Executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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A Remuneration Committee Meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2013. The attendance record of each member at the
Remuneration Committee Meeting during the year ended 31 December 2013

is set out below :-

HERE, BRLERH
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Executive Director

Mr. Li Guang [/
Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Jianhua [/
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen (Chairman) /1
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice [/
Mr. Gordon Ng 0/1

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
31 December 2013 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Remuneration Committee and is summarised below :-

() reviewed the existing remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for

all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended the amount of remuneration to be paid to each
Executive Director and senior management member for the year ended
31 December 2012 with reference to corporate goals and objectives
and reviewed the amount of Director’s fees to be paid to each Non-

executive Director for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The amount of remuneration paid to each Director for the year ended 31

December 2013 is set out in Note |2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 and

comprised five members. It is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang, the Chairman,
with Mr. Wang Lijun, Mr. Wang Dechen, Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon Ng as

members.

The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee on 30 March 2012 which are aligned with the Code Provisions of

the CG Code. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows :-

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.

REZBERBE_T—=F+-A=+—H
HFEERITMAEE SKEHFER K

Two Nomination Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 31

December 2013. The attendance record of each member at the meeting is

HIWT - set out below :-
R BITEERY
Nomination Number of Meetings
REZEEHE Committee Members Attended/Held
BRHEE(FE) Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 212
FHREEAE Mr. Wang Lijun 212
IEELE Mr. Wang Dechen 212
BEBZT Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 212
RERESE Mr. Gordon Ng 212
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee up to 21 March
2014 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee and is summarised below :-

() reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2014
AGM and considered succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
Chairman and the CEO.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
shareholders of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such

meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members and is chaired by Ms. Alice

Kan, with Mr. Wang Dechen, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Fang Shili as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee updated on 30 March 2012
are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main duties of the

Audit Committee are as follows :-

() to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of resignation or dismissal of the auditor;

(i) to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein before submission to
the Board;
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(i) to review the contents of the representation letter to the external

auditor prior to submission to the Board;

(iv)  to review the Company's financial controls, internal control and risk

management systems,

(v)  to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management's

response to these findings;

(vi)  to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and
(vil)  to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.

Two Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|
December 2013. The attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee Meetings is set out below :-

HERE, BREERH
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Shili 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Wang Dechen 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 3|
December 2013 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee and is mainly summarised below :-

(i)  reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("DTT"),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;
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(i) reviewed the reports from the Head of Internal Audit on assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
covering material controls for financial, operational, compliance and risk

management;

(i) reviewed and approved the internal audit plans for the period to 30
September 2014 from the Head of Internal Audit;

(iv)  reviewed the continuing connected transactions.

Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee comprises five members and
is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang with Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang, Mr.
Wang Dechen and Mr. Wang Lijun as members.

The duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No Development and Investment Committee meeting

was convened during the year ended 3| December 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations of the senior management members as set out on pages
24 10 26 for the year ended 3| December 2013 were within the following
bands:

AE

Number of

individuals

£ 2 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 5
1,000,000 72 1,500,000 78 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 |
6
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

DTT was appointed as the external auditor of the Group by the shareholders
at the last AGM of the Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the

year ended 3| December 2013 was set out as follows:

BREFTRERS 2 EH Fees relating to services rendered
FEr
HK$000
FiT AR Audit services 3,000
H AR B AR TS Interim review services 607
3,607

EECMBHRBEE

ARAEERARNFHERERTHRBEMK
FERHAEMATHRRARAREHEA
AR AREDEBRRZGAER - EF
ARBIR A M B RRARE LB EHIINF 52
ERFSDAZBIGHMBER - KIEHEE
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BRBREER 2 E WM - RLEERMRE
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company's Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
consolidated accounts for each half and full financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"). The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages
52 and 53. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for
the foreseeable future and thus it is appropriate to adopt the going concemn

basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Independent Auditor are set out in the

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 52 and 53.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be avoided,

and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control systems. The Group has an Internal Audit
Team reporting directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team
performs regular independent reviews of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and effectiveness on a continuing
basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and agreed every year with the
Audit Committee. A report of audit findings is submitted to the members of
the Audit Committee and discussed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The
audit reports are then followed up by the Internal Audit Team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective internal control
systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the Group's assets and

identifying business risks.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance and risk management for the year under review and in view of
the above, it opined that the Group's internal control systems are effective,
adequate and in compliance with the Code Provisions on internal control of
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing
in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.

These include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high level
of accountability and to be kept informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board Committees, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available
to answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate resolution is
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the
AGM, including the re-election of Directors. An AGM circular was distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM (at least
10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings), setting out
details of each proposing resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant

information.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all general meetings of the Company are to be
conducted by poll: the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
is provided and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding
voting by way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders’

meeting thereafter.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group's announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition (“the
Written Requisition”), specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed
Resolution”) accompanied by a statement in respect of the matter referred to
in the Proposed Resolution, to the Company Secretary of the Company at its
Head Office, to request the Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified

in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and concemns by
post or by fax to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at its Head Office as follows -

Company Secretary

China Energine International (Holdings) Ltd
Suite 4701, 47th Floor,

Central Plaza,

|8 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2013,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 4|

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on page 54 to 55.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2013, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2013 were HK$1,267,904,000 (2012: HK$1,268,360,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Lijun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng

The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date they
were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to retirement

and re-election under the Company’s Articles of Association.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang and Mr. Wang Lijun by rotation, shall retire
at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
Article |16 of the Company's Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange") pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the “Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each of such
person’s interest in such securities or in any options in respect of such capital

were as follows:

R E BREBRDL
E27) Number Percentage
Capacity of shares of shareholding
(et 1)
(Note /)
BAERIERRRAER(H72) 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
BB N AR (5 3) 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 3)
BEREAA 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%

Beneficial owner
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Note:
I. The letter "L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100% of
the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.

Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2013,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group

or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions as stated in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements, which are required to be disclosed in

accordance with Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Purchase of Wind Turbine Blades for Turbine

Assembling

[t was announced on 29 December 201 | that two subsidiaries
of the Company, Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind Turbine
Manufacture Co. Ltd. ("IM Turbine Manufacture”) and Inner
Mongolia CASC Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. (“IM
Composite Material”) entered into a Framework Agreement
whereby IM Composite Material was and is to supply wind
turbine blades as to 900KW and 2MW to IM Turbine
Manufacture from time to time in accordance with the terms of
the Framework Agreement for the three financial years ending 31

December 2014 (“Framework Agreement”).
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Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to
41.03% shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology (“Aerospace Material”), which is a
subsidiary of CALT, the Company's major controlling shareholder,
IM Composite Material is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a non wholly-owned subsidiary with the said
more than 0% shareholding. The supplies of wind turbine blades
by IM Composite Material under the Framework Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the maximum
purchase costs payable by IM Turbine Manufacture under the
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2014 amount to RMB199,700,000, RMB204,900,000 and
RMB249,700,000 respectively. There were no purchases made
under the Framework Agreement for the year 2013 against the
annual cap of RMB204,900,000.

Leasing of Property

[t was also announced on 29 December 2011 that Inner
Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. (“IM New
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a property leasing agreement with IM Composite Material
whereby IM New Energy was to lease its premises of No. |
Aerospace Road, Xing Wang Jiao Industrial Park, Xinghe County,
Inner Mongolia to IM Turbine Manufacture as industrial plant,
office, warehouse and associated facilities for manufacture of
turbine blades and other composite materials for a 2-year term
from | January 2012 to 31 December 2013 at an annual rental
and management fee of RMB5,301,000 in total.

Since IM Composite Material is a connected person as aforesaid,
the leasing of property to them constituted continuing connected
transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. The total
lease amount received by IM New Energy pursuant thereto for
the year 2013 amounted to RMB5,181,000 in total which was less
than the agreed annual cap of RMB5,301,000.
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Transactions

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to
conduct a review of the above transaction (B) (“Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions”) for the year ended 31
December 2013. The auditor has reported their factual findings
to the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and confirmed that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered

into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.

In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the
Board of Directors in writing that the Disclosed Continuing

Connected Transactions for the year ended 31 December 201 3:

(1) nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
have not been approved by the Company's board of

directors.
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(2)  nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions.

(3)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcement dated 29 December 201 |
made by the Company in respect of each of the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions.

(I1) Connected Transactions

(A) Contracting on Sourcing 3MW Wind Turbine Blade

Mould

[t was announced on 3| December 2013 that IM Composite
Material, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Contracting
Agreement with Aerospace Material on 27 December 2013
in relation to sourcing of 3MW wind turbine blade mould
as commissioned by Aerospace Material at a contract sum
of RMBI1,832,000 as mentioned in note 38(i)(a)(2) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Since Aerospace Material and IM Composite Material are
connected persons of the Company as aforesaid, the contracting
on sourcing 3MW wind turbine blade mould by IM Composite
Material under the Contracting Agreement constituted a

connected transaction under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
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(B) Shareholder’s Loans

There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd.
("ASTF") to Beijing Energine as set out in note 38(i)(a)(I) to the
consolidated financial statements. Since CALT and CASC are
intermediate major shareholder, and ultimate major shareholder,
of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's subsidiary,
the loans were connected transactions yet they were exempted
from requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders’
approval by virtue of interests relating to the loans being of
commercial terms or better to Beijing Energine and no security

made for the loans under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The above connected transactions or continuing connected transactions plus
the connected transaction on supply of wind turbine blades to Aerospace
Material by IM Composite Material under a Commissioning Agreement
disclosed in 2012 Annual Report as mentioned in note 38(i)(a)(2) to the
consolidated financial statements are confirmed that they have complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing

Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 73% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer

accounted for approximately 41% of the Group's turnover.

For the year ended 3| December 2013 purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 32% of the
Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier

accounted for approximately 10% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued

share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers or suppliers.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

A resolution would be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, if eligible, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 180,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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FeBRmkEMEE NS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

i F A=+ AIER
For the year ended 3| December 2013

B & 2013 2012
NOTES FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
LR Turnover 5 1,329,644 989,885
HERAR Cost of sales (1,305,567) (1,010,356)
=5 (8) Gross profit (loss) 24,077 (20471)
HAgA Other income 7 22,789 44552
HAbWas & E18 Other gains and losses 147,185 14,960
HE KD HKAR Selling and distribution expenses (68,670) (50,687)
THER Administrative expenses (154,275) (161923)
BRI Finance costs 9 (110,894) (88011)
JEIRERE N AR Share of results of associates (10,886) 16,896
ElhaEhEES Share of results of joint ventures 182,112 169,038
BENEECEERRERBE  Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect
of interest in a joint venture 20 - 89,000
B A& Al Profit before taxation 10 31,438 13,354
B Taxation I (4,049) (7,933)
REE Profit for the year 27,389 542
H2EBA (%) Other comprehensive
income (expense):
TeENHIEEERCEA ftem that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
—-EZ2FIEHES —exchange differences
2B ER arising on translation to
presentation currency 59,200 52,890
BEemge B D EEREZ ZHE  Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
—HERHLESRBEER —reclassification adjustment
B DA upon sale of
available-for-sale
financial asset 14,881 —
— A EeREE — change in fair value of
NHEZE available-for-sale
financial asset - (14,881)
FARAZEBA LT Total comprehensive
income for the year 101,470 43,430

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT.OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE—F=F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/3

B & 2013 2012
NOTES FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FRAUTALEEREN (BE) :  Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to:
ARAEERA Owners of the Company 39,022 26,598
JERE A Non-controlling interests (11,633) Q1,177)
27,389 542
ATATRIEEEU AL - Total comprehensive
income attributable to:
ARAEEA Owners of the Company 110,010 58,758
g gy Non-controlling interests (8,540) (15,328)
101,470 43,430
FREFN-ERK Eamnings per share - Basic 14 HKcents 0.9884L  HK cents 06751l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-F—=F1+=HA=1—H
At 31 December 2013

B e 2013 2012
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties 5 128,720 38,725
ER S Property, plant and equipment 16 391,436 501,383
WEEmE - R MR Deposits paid for acquisition of
Pz iZe property, plant and equipment 9,084 22,851
EES Goodwil 17 2,004 2,004
BVEE Intangible assets 18 30,701 68,776
R IE & B Deferred tax assets 30 2,009 3,090
E’\ BE AR ER Interests in associates 19 473,285 399975
NEEhE R Interests in joint ventures 20 1,319,549 1,416,222
—H?i\ﬂjﬁ BEE Available-for-sale financial asset 21 —_ 102,944
2,356,788 2,555,970
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 2 414,130 482,686
B 5 R E MRS Trade and other receivables 23 1,599,769 879,697
AN E Amounts due from associates 24 57,428 15,448
EU A EER Amounts due from joint ventures 25 135,074 140,460
BEIPRITIER Pledged bank deposits 26 9,312 24947
RITHEFRRE Bank balances and cash 26 631,817 462,393
2,847,530 2,005,631
V=N Current liabilities
B 5 REMENR Trade and other payables 27 858,384 526,986
AN A= /NCIE Amounts due to associates 24 318,044 134,584
ERNEERER Amounts due to a joint venture 25 6,278 22,573
I8 T 4R B Govemnment grants 31 1,068 502
FERI IR Taxation payable 1,967 489
REEEME Warranty provision 28 35,937 31,218
R—FREHz &R Borrowings - amount due
within one year 29 890,359 792,378
2,112,037 1,508730
REEEFHE Net current assets 735,493 49690
EERERRBEE Total assets less
current liabilities 3,092,281 3,052,871

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-FE—=F1+=A=1—H
At 3] December 2013

FisE 2013 2012
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
¥nBEE Non-current liabilities
R—F &I\ ER Borrowings - amount due
after one year 29 1,064,347 1,044,324
EREHIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 30 20,988 18,823
T AR B Govemment grants 3 39,792 8,531
1,125,127 1,071,678
1,967,154 1,981,193
BER A Capital and reserves
B Share capital 32 396,900 396,900
f# Reserves 1,496,889 1,387,007
ALDEHEE AEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,893,789 1,783,907
FEIE AR Non-controlling interests 73,365 197286
R Total equity 1,967,154 1,981,193
FINEAT I0EZEAMKERE - NRES The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 180 were approved
@R -—_F-—ME=A_+—BHEREE ¥ and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014 and are
RATEEAREE signed on its behalf by:
BRE =k
Han Shuwang Li Guang
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BHE—F=F1_HA=1—HIFE

REEREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
IRk EEEM ot
1] i Bt
BE  BHRE  BEEE  Property Aset  EifiE  EEEE 2R Non-
Share  Special Share  revaluation revaluation  Exchange  General Accumulated 28 controllng #g
capitl  reseve  premium  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve losses Total  interests Total
i7:A8 i7:A8 i7:A8 i7:i8 V718 i7:i8 V718 &1 7 TEL TEL
HSW HEW SO HSOY MDD MW HEW MWW SO A SO
Witi) i)
(Mot ) (NoteJ)
R=5-2%-3-8 At | anuary 012 396300 175 248304l 139 = PRI 200 (19%8%%) 1740 160367 8843
FERRTER) Proft s for the year - - - - - - - 25% 245% (. 5411
BESHISHELIENZE  Dchangedferences afsngon tansktion
o presertation curengy = = = = = il = = 404 5649 5260
TREECRAENTARY  Chpeifonle o aalbelo-se
financil asset = = = = (14881) = = = (14881) = (14881)
RERRTUAER)EE Totd comprehenshe (expense) ncome
forthe year = = = = (14881) il = 265% 58756 (15308) 440
HEAFHEHERELE  Captalcontnbudon fom noncontroling
interests n subsiciaries - - - - - - - - - 57368 57368
WEAFEARARERSD  Chage n ownesnip nteess n subses - - - - - - - 1125 1125 (L15) -
EEIHBRRBEEHIERRE  Divdend dedered o nomcontroling et
of asubsidary - - - - - - - - - (3%) (3%)
4 Tras - - - - - - W 5 - - -
RB-2Ff2R=t-8  At3| December 012 396300 11755 184 139 (14881) 268557 a5 (15127 1787 9728 1981193
RERT(5E) Proft lss) for he yezr - - - - - - - nm wow o (I6) 238
BESTISHECIBYAE  Dhange dfferences afsngon tanstion
o presentation curengy - - - - - 56,107 - - 56,107 309 59,200
HETHESHARR Redassficaon adusment upon s of
EEpLEL avlatle-orsdle fnancel aset - - - - 14881 - - - 14,881 - 14,881
RERRAFMALE  Totd comprehenshe (expense) ncome
forthe year - - - - 14,881 56,107 - m 1000 (8,540) 10140
YE-ERENBRAENER  Acqustion ofadtond nterestofan
ey sy e T N
BERHBATH S/ EERE  Diidend pad tononconoling nterest
of asbsidary - - - - - - - - - (1,665) (1,665)
BfFHE-RIEAT Deemed diposd of a subsdry - - - - - - - - = (M) ()
i Transfr - - - - - - 4m (149 - - -
REE-=H12A=1-R A3 December 013 96900 1TS54 2483141 399 - b4 6435 (1492304 1893789 3365 1,967,154
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REE 2 FRFEERA RS BEITRAE
BREARQAMEAMBARBETRAT
BEzEZBRBBEASER-NAAEFNA
ToHETEAMBEMREEER 228
16,025,000/ 7T °

th%%f%EPE BERPEARLAME(+
B DMKE R RERE () BEEFEER
() EREEXBORBERES -

Note

BE—F—=F1_H=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company and the aggregate amount of HK$ 116,025,000 transferred
from other reserves pursuant to the Group's reorganisation on | | August
1997.

Included in general reserve is reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior
years' losses or (i) expand production operations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2013

RETED Operating activities
BR AR AR A Profit before taxation
L THIRIEEL B - Adjustments for:
FSBA Interest income
FEF X Interest expenses
FEARERE N A Share of results of associates
RIERERERR Share of results of
joint ventures
B EESH Amortisation of
intangible assets
ME - BERREBZINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
BHER 2 BT Govemment grants recognised
HER—M& &b EERz e Gain on disposal of
interest in a joint venture
HE—RAHEHESMEE e Gain on disposal of an

available-for-sale

financial asset

REWMF 2 N FEZE KR Gain on fair value changes of
investment property
RYE - BB RFREHERBE Impairment losses recognised

in property, plant
and equipment

REFERE Allowance for obsolete
inventories

RAEBE I ZRERE Impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade
receivables

BHERAIREREN Unrealised profit in associate

HEME - BE RREZER(KE) Loss (gain) on disposal
of property, plant

and equipment

BRRERE Utilisation of warranty
provision
BERNG B EER 2 RBEEE Impairment loss reversed

in respect of interest in

a joint venture

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

2013
FET
HK$’000

31,438

(8,941)
110,894
10,886

(182,112)

7,370

33,380
(2,839)

(132,076)

(3,633)

(9,382)

4,841

29,805

764
(7,384)

35

(6,866)

2012
T
HK$000

13,354
(10307)
88,011
(16896)

(169,038)

12,330

33,844
(502)

1,058

(5987)

(89,000)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_T—=F1+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEMFREIAR 2 s Gain on disposal of a property
development project - (23,280)
B e A Al 2 e Gain on disposal of interests
in associates - (11,802)
W EEBE S RERZRERE Recovery of impairment loss in
respect of trade receivables - (5,018)
HRAMBE ZREEE Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill - 2,899
HEESREICETEHRERE  Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital (123,820) (180,298)
FE 2 (Em)R D (Increase)decrease in inventories (99,228) 72,677
B 5 R HE M YR Z 18 Increase in trade and
other receivables (558,884) (230,790)
FEUER & R AR 2R D Decrease in amounts due
from associates 141,409 31,679
B —FEEERER D Decrease in amount due from
a joint venture 12,074 =
B 5 REMERNKZEM Increase in trade and other payables 433,172 30,304
AN YNGRk il Increase in amounts due
to associates — 70,876
R —R& & RERZIEM Increase in amount due to
a joint venture 6,278 =
RIER 2 12N Increase in warranty provision 17,336 14,204
AREEZRE Cash used in operations (171,663) (191,348)
ERPAEH Income taxes paid (545) (8710)
RETHIARETIH Net cash used in
operating activities (172,208) (200,058)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2013

REED
AELRPHZBS

HETHLESREEMER

BEE AR R

W ER B8 T8 B
fERR (T2 1) E A RITIE K

HENE - BERRBHAER

EWFIS
BEREME

BEME  BERRE

(BR)EMEEREZRE

Wi — I B A Rl 2 RIME R

RIELE-—FHMBLARELZ

Rent#8
WENE  BELERFHEENES

HE—HEELEERBHEZIRHHRA

BEAHLESREE

PR B i K R B R (
2013 F 3

&E) BRAF

Investing activities

Dividend received from
joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of
an available-for-sale
financial asset

Dividend received
from associates

Receipt of government grant

Release (placement) of pledged
bank deposits

Proceeds on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Interest received

Purchase of investment
properties

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Guarantee deposit (repaid to)
received from a joint venture

Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

Net cash outflow from deemed
disposal of a subsidiary

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Transaction cost directly
attributable to the disposal
of a joint venture

Purchase of available-for-sale
financial asset

Investments in associates

Purchase of intangible assets

Investment in a joint venture

=
=
Bl

2013
FET

NOTE HK$’000

180,699

122,481

27,930
34,383

15,635

7,382
5,755

(60,957)

(30,459)

(22,573)

(10,375)

39 (9,718)

(781)

(1,446)

2012
T
HK$000

97813

4191

(2,341)

1,229
5709

(19.443)

22,573

(15,417)

(118399
(25314
(81,166

)
)
)
(1,480)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_T—=F1+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
BT FET FET
NOTE HK$’000 HK$000
HEMRREIREMER Proceeds on disposal of a
property development project - 36,998
BERESELEZER Repayment of loan from a
joint venture —_ 29,599
HE RS R RGN Proceeds on disposal
of associates - 13,610
T HRITEIORD Decrease in fixed bank deposits — 12,409
REZHEL(FTR)ZREFE Net cash from (used in)
investing activities 257,956 (39,429)
METE Financing activities
MEAER New loans raised 1,021,402 1,056,916
EERER Repayment of borrowings (846,477) (583,955)
BAH S Interest paid (110,894) (88011)
B AT P B 2 B JE R Rl M R AL Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary (5,661) (5,220)
P B A I FEFE B AR (B3R Repayment of loan to a
non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary - (68,114)
MEAR—RIFEHERREE Capital contribution from
a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary —_ 9,866
METHAEE2RERE Net cash from
financing activities 58,370 321,482
ReMReEFEMEMTHE Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 143,410 81,995
SNEERE B FE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 26,014 23,836
FzHe RREEED Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 462,393 356,562
FRZAERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
(RITEBRRAL) end of the year,
representing bank balances
and cash 631,817 462,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech
Group Limited (“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands which holds 66.75% interest in the Company. Astrotech
is wholly owned by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology
("CALT"), a state-owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science &
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company of
the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and
CALT are companies established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC™).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual

report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are

located.
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FER e REETEEME
HEEQ ( [FEMBRE
8] )

ARERAFEEREAME LG
RE([BEEGFMAE ) BMZATH

BE—F=F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/3

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) for

A REERTEBM B ISR -

BB EHRE BB 15 M LR
LR (BFTA) —ETNEERE
—T——FHH
ZEEE
BB EHRE BBEEE K
AERIZE 7 5 THEER
C-HES) SHEE
BAVBRS REMBERE -
R 057 - BERHRER
BAMBRSE REMEEZ
ZAIE IR = BEES
BAMBRSE
R 125
(1BFTA)
BB EHRE IREMBHRE
ZERIZ 105
BB EHRE BERH
ZERIE |5
B EHRE BBENEMEEE
RIS 1257 P 3
BEAVBRE DNHEFE
ZERIE 1357
BRI RERF
%195
(ZF—%
AEH)
BEgRER 18RI B 75 3=
275
(ZF—%
aEH)

the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS |0,
HKFRS || and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 1]

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 201 1)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009
- 2011 cycle

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure

of interests in other entities:

Transition guidance

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entities

Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 1) Investments in associates and

joint ventures

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income
HK(IFRIC) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the package
of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”,
HKFRS |1 “Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests
in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1) “Separate financial
statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 1) “Investments in
associates and joint ventures”, together with the amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 'l and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1) is not applicable to the Group as it deals

only with separate financial statements.
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For the year ended 3| December 20/3

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements and
HK(SIC) INT - 12 “Consolidation - Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor has control over
an investee when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
(c) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an investee.
Previously, control was defined as the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Additional guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an

investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. | January 2013) as to whether or not
the Group has control over its subsidiaries in accordance with the new
definition of control and the related guidance set out in HKFRS 10. The
directors of the Company concluded that the initial application of HKFRS
10 has no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS Il replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”, and the
guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC) - INT |3 “Jointly
controlled entities - Non-monetary contributions by venturers”, has
been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 1). HKFRS || deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under HKFRS |1,
there are only two types of joint arrangements - joint operations and
joint ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS
['I'is determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to
the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 3| contemplated
three types of joint arrangements - jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of
joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on
the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was
established through a separate entity was accounted for as a jointly

controlled entity).
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For the year ended 3| December 20/3

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations is different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including its share of any
assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the
sale of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts
for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating
to its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable

standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the classification
of the Group's investments in joint arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS I1. The directors concluded that the Group's
joint arrangements, which was classified as a jointly controlled entity
under HKAS 31 should be classified as joint ventures under HKFRS
Il and accounted for using the equity method. Therefore, the initial
application of HKFRS I'| has no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of HKFRS
[2 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad:
the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS |3 apply to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring

inventories or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS |3 includes extensive

disclosure requirements.

HKFRS |3 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS |3 for the 2012 comparative period
(please see note |5 for 2013 disclosures). Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS |3 has not had any material impact

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 3| December 20/3

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS | “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to HKAS I, the Group's ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. The amendments to HKAS | retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS | require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis - the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other
than the above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS | does not result in any impact on profit or loss,

other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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2. FERFTREEIEHIE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HBEEL ( [EEMBRE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
28] ) @ STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
EEGERRESZHTRESTES New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
MR EER
NEBEWRIERERATIEBAENK The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
SRz T RRETEAMEREE that have been issued but are not yet effective:
Al
EBYBRE BB IS AR Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010
ZRI(BETA) —T-TFZF -2012 cycle*
—E-ZFEY
ZEEUE
EBYRE BB GRS AR Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 201 |
ZRI(BETA) —T——FZ% -2013 cycle?
—T-=FBH
ZFEEE?
BB ERE SRIAS HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’
HERIE 957
BRUBRE EEERICER® HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®
HERIE 1457
EBYRE BB GRS AR Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
ERIFE IR R 952 Rl 1L and HKFRS 7 and transition disclosures®
BERIBRE ERBR
RRIFET7 5% BERE’
CHEN)
BEMEHRE LB Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities'
LRI 1055 - HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
BRMBRE
BAF 12K
BB ER
F27RERTA)
B %R BEEwaTE Amendments to HKAS [9 Defined benefit plans:
FI9RUEEIR) EEHF Employee contributions?
B %R HEERMEEN Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
FRHUETER) RARE! financial liabilities'
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for

non-financial assets'
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and

continuation of hedge accounting'

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014.

Available for application - the mandatory effective date will be

determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014, with limited
exception.

> Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after
| January 201 6.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle

The Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised

below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition” and ‘service condition” which were previously
included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to
HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for which
the grant date is on or after | July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair
value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after | July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to
operating segments, including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided if the
segment assets are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-

maker.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS |3 clarify that
the issue of HKFRS I3 and consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short- term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts

without discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity is a
related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity
should disclose as related party transactions the amounts incurred for
the service paid or payable to the management entity for the provision
of key management personnel services. However, disclosure of the

components of such compensation is not required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle will

have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 201 1 - 2013 cycle

The “Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle” include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised

below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply
to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in
the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS |3 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9,
even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be
required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must

determine whether:

(@)  the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the “Annual improvements to HKFRSs 201 1-2013 cycle” will

have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities

The amendments to HKFRS [0 define an investment entity and require
a reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment entity not
to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at

fair value through profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

®  obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management

services ;

®  commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment

income, or both; and

®  measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its

investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the investment
entities amendments will have any effect on the Group's consolidated

financial statements as the Company is not an investment entity.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off and ‘simultaneous realisation and

settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have

any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures

for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been
allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment
of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair value less

costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment property and available-
for-sale financial asset which are measured at fair value, as explained in

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

0 Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

0 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
J has power over the investee;

0 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition

date (see the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If; after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value

or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate

is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate’s and the joint venture's
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.



e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESEE @)

=

Tops
]

ABEATREGELEZRE ()

A

BREGHERF R ZRETIAER
NEEREFERAKRERNABZE QA
FEELCEIREBABEMAERE
RBEER  ZEREZ2HEEESR
BEBGHERNFE R EEREIER
—REFEELTHENS - TEAER
RAAROSEBMEREERRFER
HERAZERRE)ERAE - EAEH
RZREBRBERZRAREZEHEL
— &0 - BRREER EMELD R
ZERBZ MBS BERENZBER
REFEB G ERIE 36 IR

I\ 2 B2

WARE KRR EYREZ A FETE
THENEAFEHRETREER
AR 0 FE M2 SRR - BT B 38 AR R
B

EmHECBATTRERE RN R

BRCEBZEATHER ERENA

THIEA e -

o AEECKERFEERIENRR
EEHEETET

s AREVERE-REREEAH
ZHEEmFEEEEXERZ

1
o  HEWASEENSFME

o HEXZHAIEBEMERAGETA
AEE: R

o BERSELABELZAALN
BEZHE B

ENHEZWMATINE NG BRHER

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;
0 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

0 it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

0 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

87



88

Npup s
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i F A=+ AIER
For the year ended 3| December 2013

3.

FESHHER @)

WAzt ()
AR U B 5 B 765 By AR

SREENSRATIZERS BB NE
AERNRZREEESE  MERF
K BEERRHERFRAME
ARBREREFRECRHBEENINHER
R IREFEZRERE -

KREZBBWATIERR KRR 2 #
FIRETE1& T A RE R (HE (R 1 R AC B A 258
FRARNSEE BWA R AR S5 E) ©

V¥ BERRE

BREEL (D EABREREE)ZY
% BERREREKABRELRRFT
ERRFREBE(NE) NS M BN
e IN X

FEDEBRNYE  BERRB
A6 A A A B A M IR B R
LA ERFR cHSBEERRER -
AT AES  RpEERTENZ
REFEHREH At 2 ENEZHY
EREREENK -

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition(Continued)
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.
Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

0 the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it

will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

J the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

0 how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic

benefits;

0 the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and

development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
eamned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS |2 (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial asset. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due
from associates, bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group designated the investment in the shares of a listed entity as an

available-for-sale financial asset on initial recognition of those items.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of asset revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting

policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 90
days, observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the

impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of asset revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment |oss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amount due to a joint venture and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured

at their fair values are subsequently measured at the higher of:

() the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue

recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values

of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time

value of the money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities which are stated at
functional currency of the respective group entity other than Hong
Kong dollars are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed

to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,

are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of joint ventures

Determining impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of interests in joint ventures require estimation of their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is determined from value
in use calculation by estimating the Group's share of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the joint
ventures, using discount rates which reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the joint ventures.
A reversal of impairment loss of HK$89,000,000 was recognised in
2012. The joint venture had recorded an increase in sales orders and
had showed continuous improvement in profit making for the past few
years. The actual sales and gross margin were higher than the budgeted
sales and gross margin of the joint venture for the past few years. As a
result, the profit had improved and the recoverable amount had also
increased. Details of the recoverable amount calculation and reversal of
impairment loss were disclosed in note 20. As at 3| December 2013,
the carrying amounts of interests in joint ventures after the reversal of
impairment loss are HK$1,319,549,000 (2012: HK$1,416,222,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$2,004,000 (2012: HK$2,004,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 7.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment in

wind energy related products segment

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount represents the higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use is calculated by estimating the future cash
flows expected to be generated by the assets based on a 5-year budget
approved by the management at a discount rate of 4%, which reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the operation of the assets. Taking into account the value
in use of the assets, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
no impairment is considered necessary. As at 3| December 2013,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment in wind energy
related products segment is HK$208,706,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$312,881,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 3| December 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$531,832,000 (2012: HK$493,668,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$66,701,000 (2012: HK$65,687,000).

TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows:

2013 2012

FAET AT

HK$’000 HK$ 000

HERNEERBER Sales of wind energy related products 1,136,584 734,692

EmiHE Sales of goods 161,150 225,765
HERBRSELZEN Sales of electricity from operation of

wind power field 31,910 29,428

1,329,644 989,885

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Wind Energy Related Products — Manufacture and sales of wind
energy related products

Operation of Wind Farm — Sales of electricity from operation
of wind power field

REPM Products — Manufacture and distribution of
elevator motors

Trading of Materials — Trading of chemical materials

Telecommunication Business ~ — Development, manufacture and
distribution of communication
products, [TS, broadband
systems, equipment and

accessories

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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6. PDEBE ») 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEKISREE Segment revenue and results
ANEFRRERRED By LEEN & The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by
ESIT operating and reportable segment.
BE_E—=F+-A=t+—-BHLEE For the year ended 31 December 2013
BAN%E
BBER BEE #t B ER
Wind Energy Operation EHER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication &4
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated

FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000

EE2 ] TURNOVER
e External sales 1,136,584 31,910 44,665 82,785 33,700 1,329,644
£+ | RESULT
HERE Segment result (103,932) 13,066 (2,427) 509 (16,018) (108,802)
ABARLAER Unallocated corporate expenses (99,275)
AEAREMMA Unallocated other income 14,702
BBRA Finance costs (110,894)
ElhagbszE Share of results of int

-REARHH ventures - inallocated portion 190,616
HETEEESBAENE  Gain on disposal of avalable-forsale

financial asset 3,633

HEREtENE Gain on disposal of a oint venture 132,076
REMEATEEM Increase in far value of investment property 9,382
R AEH Profit before taxation 31,438

140 THEHUXBRER(KE) SR
2013 &
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

PHEER @) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEWESREE (£) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
BE-E——-&4+-B=+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012
BN%E
RBER BAEE fit EEES
Wind Energy Operation ERER HBES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication &8
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated
FAL FAL FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EXE TURNOVER
g Extemnal sales 734692 29428 31,264 166,792 27,709 989,885
& RESULT
prEs Segment resut (116.179) N6l 739 311 (3808) (96294)
AEARATER Unallocated corporate expenses (71837)
RESTREMBA Unallocated other income [1792
BB Finance costs (88011)
EhasbssE Share of results of oint
-AEARHH ventures - unallocated portion 168,704
BORRECEER Reversal of impaiment loss recognised in
R HERR respect of interest in a oint venture 89,000
KRS Profit before taxation 13354

DEEBEES D ERNAEENRTA
EHEE - TRERBEAE - REY
ENTENE  LEAHRLESRHEE
W R EEAERERE -
ARAREDREMBARREDEA A
BR WMEXETBKAREZEHS B
h B & D F B 18108860008 (=&
— —F : B 5 F 16,896,000 7T ) &
EiEA & EEE8504008 T(ZF
— =& EIEE 3340008 T) D ERE
BEDHE R ERIERDEER
FEME  MAEBRITEEZ RN

=

s °

Segment results represent the profit or loss before taxation earned or
incurred by each segment, excluding finance costs, fair value gain on
investment properties, gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial
asset, share of results of joint ventures which cannot be allocated,
unallocated other income and corporate expenses such as central
administration costs and directors’ salaries. Share of loss of associates
of HK$10,886,000 (2012: share of profit of HK$16,896,000) and
share of loss of joint ventures of HK$8,504,000 (2012: share of profit
of HK$334,000) were allocated to reportable segments. This is the
measure reported to the Group's Executive Directors for the purpose

of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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6. HEHBE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SESEREE Segment assets and liabilities
AREBRRES B EERBES M The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
T reportable segment.
R=Z-=5+=-HA=+-H At 31 December 2013
BH%E
HEER B5EE i ERES
Wind Energy Operation EdER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication &a
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated
FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
HREE Segment assets 2,167,494 596,280 35,517 - 54,124 2,853,415
ReEhEER Interests in joint ventures 1,259,451
AEARRAEE Unallocated corporate assets 1,034,024
GREESE Consolidated total assets 5,146,890
8f LIABILITIES
NERR Segment liabilties 1,112,015 nnm 12,867 - 42,600 1,240,253
AEARLAARE Unalocated corporate labilties 1,939,483
FREERE Consolidated total iabilties 3,179,736

142 THURXBRER(KE) SR
2013 &
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2012

BIEE
HBER B5EE fit EMER
WindEnergy ~ Operation ElER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM  Tradingof communication &4
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated
FAL FAL FAT FAT FAL FAT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
8E ASSETS
NREE Segment asses 1872433 613956 31,898 31,200 57779 2,607,266
AnghkzEs Interests in joint ventures 1 347929
AARRREE Unallocated corporate assets 606406
BRBELE Consolidated total assets 4561601
8 LIABILITIES
HEEFE Segment liabilties 1,232,380 88,370 1,360 6,050 214997 1,363,157
AARRAER Unallocated corporate liabities 1207251
FaRkaE Consolidated total iabilties 2580408

o BTAANENRAZELE ES

RENEREMEREE(TRH
RITH @%& E/i\ AaRk) -

E#HD

s BTASEZETES
A&

Mo

tt:

B &
HBENE - mERN
Hw%hmZﬁiﬁ@
Bk

ERED

ERRIERE
MERBEIERERED

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than

interests in joint ventures which cannot be allocated, investment

properties and other financial assets that comprise of mainly bank

balances and cash. Goodwill is allocated to reportable segments

as described in note |17; and

J all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

certain borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax

liabilities.
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6. NEEHE #

R=-B-=Ff+=-A=1—-H

B EENAER
ANREELER:
03 ERRERE
0% RERRERE
EIRENR HRR
R HERR
EIERARIR L AERR

PHERE AERR

Amounts incuded in the measure of segment
profit or foss or segment asets
Addtion of property, lant and equipment
Deprecation of property, plant and equiment
Impaiment loss recognised on property
plant and equiprment
Impaimnent loss recognised n respect
oftrade receivebles
Impaiment loss recognised inrespect of nventories
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interests in associetes
Interests n joint ventures
Share of (loss) pofit of assocites

Share of loss) proft of joit ventures

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

At 31 December 2013

ENEE
BEER
Wind Energy
Related
Products
iZ-2

HKs 000

26,839
16,632

4841

154
(%)
134014
9176
(19,639)
(6483

i H
Operation
of Wind
Farm
iz
HKS$ 000

1,196
13,19

w0
09m
815
(1)

#t
B#ER
REPM
Products
FAT
HKS 000

&
1,001

HRES
Trading of
Materials
7AT
HKs 000

ERER

Tele-
communication
Business

773
HKS 000

130
1M

FEAE
Unallocated
FAT

HKS 000

N
2l

1,259,451

190,616

&e
Consolidated
FAL
HK$000

30,459
33,380

4,841

64
1906

(3)
m s
1319549
(10,386)
183,12

TEMABRER(KE) ARAF
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HihnEEE (2)
R-E-——-H+-A=+-—H

BIEEEARANS Amounts induded in the mezsure of segment
FRANEARSE: proft o loss o segment aseets:
hx J’ﬁ%&mﬁ Addition of property,plant and equipment
% BERRER Depreciation of property,plnt and equipment
WEREARYA MEE‘@ Impaiment loss recogised n respect
of trade receivables
YERBESEUZREEE  Recovery of mpament ogs i respect
oftrade receivebles
WERRELHERER Impaiment loss recognised in respect of inventories

BIRBAENEER  Impaimentlos recogised nrespect of goodwil
HENZ FERAEZIE  Gan on dsposa of property,plant and equpment
N

KBRS Inerests i assoctes

ReEbF R Iferest njont ventures
EEBERTEN Share ofproft of asociates
BEARLEETIBE)  Shareof proft oss) of jint ventures
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

At 31 December 2012

ENEE
EEER
Wind Energy
Related
Products
AL
Hsow

10886
168%

B

16%

5
7520
15460
1308
6349

i H
Operation
of Wind
Farm
&L
SO0

213
1275

475
Lt
4571
(6015

#t ERER

BlER HHES Tele-
REPM  Tradingof ~communication FE0R
Products Materials Business  Unallocated

7T 7T 7T 7T
HSO S0 SO0 HS

7 - 9 g
1856 - 104 Il
018 - - -
58 - - -
- - - 4
- - —
— — ‘ 7 —
- - - 64704

&&
Consolidated
FAT
HS00

139%
3364

B

5018
105
169

9
39975
416200
168%
169,038
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

6. DHBE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HE S5 Geographical information
NEFBZEBUREERTR 2 Hithih The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of
& o the PRC.
() AEBREIREEZLLEFE () The Group's revenue from external customers are detailed
IR below:
2013 2012
FE FET
HK$’000 HK$000
R B E 3 [ Other regions of the PRC 1,312,513 967,707
BB Hong Kong 4,246 20,949
e United States of America 11,786 91
Hitb Others 1,099 [,138
1,329,644 989,885

116 THUABRER(KE) SRAF
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PHEER @) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
WENE (&) Geographical information (Continued)
iy WEEMEMNESBOAEEIER (i) Information about the Group's non-current assets (excluding
FEESCRTERIINEENE financial instruments) by geographical location of the assets are
BEFENT detailed below:
FRBEEREE
Carrying amount
of non-current assets
2013 2012
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
Fh B fth it [ Other regions of the PRC 2,354,409 2,449,457
BB Hong Kong 2,379 3,569
2,356,788 2,453,026
FHREEEREH Information about major customers
BEREBBAAEEERE 0%NEFNE Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
REEERBWT 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEA Customer A 697,376 391,047
EPFB! Customer B 419,306 N/A3
BEC Customer C? N/A® 166,792
| RAHEBHEERE R I Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products
2 MHE 5SS %% 2 Revenue from Trading of Materials
3 HESXEHASERLEETRMAK 3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
B 10% - Bt - RERFHEA/TE sales of the Group, thus, disclosure for the specific customers is not

RTN/AL - applicable (“"N/A").
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1.

Hitilg A

Hi g A B

BREREHIMA

B8
ik N
ST ON

—iR7T

(HEsE1)

KB

—BFARLEZBH

HA A

—HEMFFMEAE e (EE2)

7. OTHER INCOME

Other income comprises:

Clean Development Mechanism income

Government grants (Note |)

Rental income
Interest income

—bank balances

—advance to joint ventures

Other income

—gain on disposal of

a property development

project (Note 2)

2013 2012
FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
— 5256

5,035 2,669
5,608 483
5,755 3,170
3,186 7,137

- 23,280

S E6I3000E L(Z T —=F:
502,0007% 7t ) 48 7 B B AT A
REENE BERSZENET
AEBEZRHPHH 3 &8
22260008 L(ZF—=F: &)
R BT H B8t A R T £
FAESEZ/mBHE3) - T
$E2196000B (=T ——F
2,167,000 7T ) 18 B B 51 5 BE
REZHEFRRE

FEEAR-E——FEHEZET
18 511,626,000 T & 1) % 5 %
EEY—%E=F ReREA
36,998,000 7T © H I FTE A 1 &
1§ %5 /523,280,000 7% 7T (4% 1 B 2
S8 2,092,000587T)

TEMABRER(KE) ARAF

2013 £ i

Note:

An amount of HK$613,000 (2012: HK$502,000) represents subsidies
granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for the
purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 31). An amount of HK$2,226,000 (2012: Nil) represents
subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities
for telecommunication business (Note 31). The remaining amount of
HK$2,196,000 (2012: HK$2,167,000) represents subsidies received
from the PRC tax authorities on Value Added Tax reduction.

The Group disposed of its property development project with a net
asset value of HK$ 11,626,000 to a third party for a cash consideration
of HK$36,998,000 in 2012. A gain on disposal of HK$23,280,000 (net
of transaction cost of HK$2,092,000) was resulted.
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8. HukEREiE 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEREE MRl Gain on disposal of interest in
a joint venture 132,076 =
REMERTELB W= Gain from change in fair value
of investment property 9,382 =
HERHEESREE KR Gain on disposal of available-for
— sale financial asset 3,633 =
EHERE K e F R Net exchange gain recognised 2,893 1,075
HEME  BERSBEZ(BB)Wa  (Loss) gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (35) 9
HERBEN T 2 Bl Gain on disposal of interests in associates —_ 11,802
W EAEBE S RERZRERE Recovery of impairment loss in respect
of trade receivables —_ 5018
REBEERERE Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill —_ (2,899)
EREME SR RERE Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables (764) (45)
147,185 14,960
9. HAERAE 9. FINANCE COSTS
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RITREMERFEZ L Interest on bank and other loans:
—BARAFRBHER — wholly repayable within five years 106,490 82,732
—TRRAFATHER — not wholly repayable within five years 4,404 5,279
110,894 88,01 |
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10. it F]

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
A& N 2 R Profit before taxation has been
THIRARER : arrived at after charging;
E=Me Directors’ emoluments 6,604 5,849
HE THRA Other staff costs 74,700 79,465
Hitvle B R IKIEFIET B R Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions 8,520 9,863
89,824 95,177
ZEETE £ Auditor's remuneration 3,000 3,000
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 7,370 12,330
AR 2 FERAR Cost of inventories recognised
(B EREF SR 298060008 T as an expense (including allowance
(ZZ—=% :1,058000/87T)) for obsolete inventories of
HK$29,806,000 (2012: HK$1,058,000)) 1,254,515 992,706
ME - BERREBINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 33,380 33,844
B RNEEEXMEZz 8 Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories (1,696) (4401)
31,684 29,443
R REFZEEROTMNZ Minimum lease payments
xEAE under operating leases
in respect of land and buildings 11,725 [1,835
HERFx Research and development expenses 1,912 l,646

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
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I. HIE 1. TAXATION

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

AEEHREX LR - Tax charge for the year comprises:
B G PRC Enterprise Income Tax 2,008 7479
EFER A S H (B 5 30) Deferred tax charge (Note 30) 2,041 454
4,049 7933

7R 70 TR S ) R A5 AT O ) 2 R

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the profit before

T : taxation is as follows:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BR 7 A A Profit before taxation 31,438 13,354
RABERMERBE25% 2 Tax charge at PRC Enterprise
HIEX Income Tax rate of 25% 7,860 3,338
[ELEE AR REEBEER Share of results of associates
and joint ventures (42,8006) (46,484)
HHBIATMBRR L2 HBTE Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose 700 5,086
AEHER ARG ERZ Tax effect of deductible temporary
BT E differences not recognised 12,418 14,445
AHRB T RARMNBAZ BT E Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (3,382) (26,958)
REERBE BT E Tax effect of losses not recognised 28,827 57,449
PALAARLRRAZ HEEHR Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised - )
PN T =T =R Tax effect of temporary differences
EAERERLRETE attributable to undistributed profits
of PRC subsidiaries 432 1,064
AEEHIA Tax charge for the year 4,049 7933
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

1. HIE @ 1. TAXATION (Continued)
AR AEERNMEANTEESEG KRB No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group
ERZERT & - L AFIREBF has no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both
B o years.
BE(FEAREMBCEMSESHZE) Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
([EMBRED)RDEMSHEER Tax (the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
ME| - FEHBATIZHRER —ET)\ tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from | January 2008 onwards.

F—HA—HELA2%-

12. B B RESENE 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) ESREH (@) Directors and chief executive
ENSEMA(ZE—ZF: A The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2012: nine)
fBEERAHEEZHEMT directors and the chief executive were as follows:

003 00
Hitde Hfrie
Other emoluments Other emoluments

B4R BIER #ek R

AEA BEE Azl RELE

Salaties  Retirement Salanes Retiement
#8  andother benefits scheme it e andother  benefts scheme gt
f£:2S Name of director Fees benefits ~ contributions Total Fegs benefts ~ contrbutions Totd

7T i &1 fér i 7 7T 7T
HK$000 HK$ 000 HKs 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 o0 H$000 g0

B Han Shuwang - 1,795 - 1,795 = 1,656 = 1,656
£ T Wang Xaodong - 1,604 15 1,619 = 1490 14 1504
E (M) Li Guang (Note) - 1333 - 1333 - 1018 - 1018
1iE Wang Lijun - 1,0 - 1,01 = 994 = 994
e ZLang Wert - - - - = 0 = 0
9] Fang S - - - - - - - -
KR Zhang Jenhua - 24 - 254 - - - -
B2 1 Wang Dechen Im - - Im 1 = = 150
#BR Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 11 - - Im 150 = = 150
RER Gordon Ng Im - - Im 150 = = 150
531 6,058 5 6,604 40 5365 4 5869
i Name of the chief executive
TH() Li Guang (Note) - 1333 - 1333 - 1018 - 1018
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12. B B REENE & 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EEREFK (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
BEREEHITANESRNEBE=Z Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
—=f+ZA=t+—BAkZT—= emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 3|
F+A=+—BUEFERELM December 2012.

e o

E ZEEEREBEE_Z—_-F < The director resigned during the year ended 3| December 2012.
TZA=T—HIEFREE- The director was not compensated from the loss of office.
EETGRGHBMHE -

Mzt EXARRBIZEEHBE Note: Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
EXFREMEBERIERE Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
HETIRE R 2 Bl - services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

(b) EHfimEHMERAL (b) Five highest paid individuals

=
S

y The five highest paid individuals included four (2012: four)

directors. Among the four directors, one is the chief executive

Tfusz@FMENALEHED
—E-CHF ) EFE- O
Exd . —fUREH - Hif—
“E-CF )RS HH
AATZBEmT

(=7

N

officer. The emoluments of the remaining one (2012: one)

=2

highest paid individuals were as follows:

=
=]

2013 2012

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

Yo REMER Salaries and other benefits 1,072 994
#oVEEMNT : The emoluments were within the following bands:

2013 2012

EEAE EAH

Number of Number of

employees employees

T ILZE 1,000,000 7T HK$NIl to HK$ 1,000,000 — |
1,000,001 FE7TZE 1,500,000 7  HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 | —

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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13.

45

HE_Z—=Ff+_A=+—HLHF
B AEEBEIRESEREEMR
B BRMERTEARTEEZREE
MRE(ZE——F : &) -

[i

BkBH-EF

ARRREAREZERERBFTIE
RTFIBEE -

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 3|
December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
the reporting period (2012: Nil).

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data.

2013 2012
FET &7
HK$’000 HK$000
R EBRERE R 2 B F Earnings for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 39,022 26,598
Number of shares
REAE

2013 2012

RETESRERBHZRMDEE  Number of shares for the purposes
of basic eamings per share 3,968,995,668 3,968,995,668

ARMERNDEDETEEERRD -
F I &2 5| SREFRT

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
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15. REME

B _F—=F A= —HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
NEE FAIR VALUE

REA] At beginning of the year 38,725 37,680
BE 5 R Exchange realignment 1,213 ,045
NS Additions 79,400 =

EREEERZ A FEEMN Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss 9,382 =
ML At end of the year 128,720 38,725

AREREBERES K KEHER
BRFEERZERNZAMEER
HERATEEAGE  FDR/REDE
WARBMEANR - REMEETEIA
RHEAOTARA -

AEER_T—=F+t-_A=t—-HZ
RENEAFEREAREY EREL
BUAREREXMGEMIIAFMITAE
RAFNAR B HETE - 2 FETS
RERBMOEAR TRENEZEE
HEWARNEE B RERE

AEBRENER -_T——F+=-A
=t+—HZAFEEHARRESE
e BARNAERETZZBABEIR
SERERYIBOEAYE 2 LHTS
EREIEL -

REFMELATER  ARANEZR
SRERERGNAREERAR -

TRENMABELZENELFELA
RFERZEETERBARE) ZEM
AERAVEAEMBLATESR(E—E
F=R)(RELXFEFEBARE A
BRRENR) -

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties. The investment properties were held under medium term
leases and in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2013 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the
date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. The fair value was determined
based on direct capitalisation method by dividing the potential rental
income of the properties to be valued by the appropriate capitalisation

rate.

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 3|1 December
2012 had been determined by the directors of the Company. The
valuation performed by the directors of the Company was arrived at by
reference to recent market prices for similar commercial properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorized (Levels | to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements

is observable.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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15. REYE » 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
FEERGEHBRRR FUREBARE
Fris 2 RENF HERER HAVEZRE
Investment properties TERAYE Relationship of
held by the Group in AYEZHE  Valuation EZZAUBERARE unobservable
the statement of Fair value  technique(s) Significant inputs to
financial position hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) the fair value
—E-—=F1+-f=1—H
As at 3] December 2013
frm i B2 EAY& F= BRERME Bt R4 et ERERE EXMCLEBR  RVE
Commercial property in the PRC  Level 3 Direct Capitalisation ~ WA ZEAR{L - MEUERKRT BE-
Approach R
Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the capitalisation
FTEBABER account of the capitalisation of rate, the lower the fair
The key inputs are: rental income potential, nature of value.
(1) BREr X the property, prevailing market
(1) Capitalisation rate;  condition, of 4%
(2) A# -
(2) Monthly rent. AEGTHRARES0T  ER ABER ATEES-

FEEEERAERTSLES

EAL A RBER - WEUARDE

RESENRE

Monthly rent, based on net The higher the monthly
floor area, using direct market rent, the higher the fair
comparables and taking into value.

account of age, location and

individual factors such as size of

property of RMB80/sq.m.

126 TEMXERER(KE) FRAF
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FEERGERBRREK
sz RENF
Investment properties
held by the Group in
the statement of

financial position

TXRFaNE

Industrial complex

DFEER
Fair value

hierarchy

F=R

Level 3

=pup i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EF-SE oA AR
For the year ended 31 December 2013

+—=

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

HERER
IEHARE

Valuation

technique(s)

and key input(s)

BERERA
Direct Capitalisation

Approach

TREABES:

The key inputs are:

(

(
(
(

) BAEL X

) Capitalisation rate;
)

2) A -
2) Monthly rent.

EZZAUBERAYE
Significant

unobservable input(s)

BRI &55%  Kit REEMR
TWAZERE  HEUERR
TmR

Capitalisation rate, taking into
account of the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature of
the property, prevailing market
condition, of 5.5%

ABBFHIAARE 2T ER
FEERERAERTSLES
ELEIRER NEARDE
i R REEERIRE

Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of age, location and
individual factors such as location
and size of property of RMBI2/

sqm.

FUBRAARE
HATFEZBHE
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to

the fair value

BALLRES
HIE -

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair

value.

AlEE  RTEES-

The higher the monthly
rent, the higher the fair

value.

TR BEBEAZBLE=R -

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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16. M3 - BERRIE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE %F  BHRE
HELH R#&  BERRE BAR
REF Plant, Wind  HARIR HBAERE
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture HE  RBIR
land and and  plantand and  and office Motor Construction a8
buildings  machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles in progress Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
HSOW  HG0 KSR HKSOOD  HKSO0 MRS HKSOD SO
o CoST
W-E-—%-5-R At | January 2012 15948 BHO 48563 D65 17322 16739 —  5440%8
B AR Exchange realignment 3) 65 11,503 645 170 £l - 13695
AE Addtions 19207 07 38515 1160 208 2847 - 739%
e Disposdls - - 907) - (469) — - (1376
WZF-ZF+ZA=+—H A3l Decerber 2012 45537 U9 497674 2546| 1905 19929 - 3
B AR Exchange realignment 40 768 13,139 757 yl] 45 - 15763
AE Addtions - 60 4305 6530 5374 2464 11726 30459
e Disposdls - (3659) (4009) (28) (4574) (759) - (13027)
RiEHE-RIBAA Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(R3E39) (Note 39) (29207) - (80053) (2414 (262) (134) - (11380)
RZB-ZF+ZA=1-H A3l December 203 16750 2889 BI0 30306 197% 20763 1726 552086
fERAE DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
WE-—%5-5-H At | January 2012 2134 14395 53860 8264 9,569 7517 - 95959
ERAR Exchange realignment 4 30 559 27 69 102 - 1,341
5Bk Provided for the year 8l 2885 21,169 4201 2083 2455 - 33844
HERH Elminated on disposel — — ®) — ©3) — - (156)
RZF—ZETZA=T—H At3] December 2012 3189 17670 75495 12682 11878 10074 - 130988
fE AR Exchange realignment 8 546 9 377 10 164 - 218
RERTE Provided for the year 1041 206) 21209 4314 2668 208 - 33380
RNERER L AEER Impaiment loss recognised
(F3) in profit or loss (Note) = = = 4841 = = = 4841
HER Eliminated on disposal - (3152) (o)} (19) (21%) (28) - (5610)
RAELE—FMELAR  Fiminated on deemed diposal
i (HE9) ofa subsidiary (Note 39) (164 - (3.141) () (262) (4n) - (4877)
RZF-=F+ZA=1-H A3l December 203 4074 17,126 94465 21378 12238 11,569 - 160850
HEE CARRYING VALUES
WZF-=F+ZA=1—H At3| December 2013 12676 476 3% 8928 7558 9,194 1176 39143
RZZ—ZETZA=T—H At3] December 2012 348 7049 NI 12779 7173 9855 — 0138

TEMABRER(KE) ARAF
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For the year ended 3| December 20/3

16. Y1% - BENSEE &) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Mz - BE-T—=F+-A=+—RHItF Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of the Company
B ALREFHAREZEEBE conducted a review of the Group's production assets and determined
ETREIREDHEERREMN S that some assets were fully impaired due to obsolescence. Accordingly,
ZUMME - Bt - 4,841,000 7T 2 B (& impairment loss of HK$4,841,000 has been recognised in profit or loss.

BRERBRPHER
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

LRBANE  BERRXEZIHRANE straight line basis at the following rates per annum:
REBATFRITE -
Leasehold land and buildings 3 - 5% or over the unexpired lease terms,
HEH 3-5% M EEF whichever is shorter
L S5 B AREERE Plant, equipment and machinery 9-15%
BE - XERESE 9-15% Wind energy plant and equipment 5-15%
ANEEHERAR  5-15% Moulds and tools 25%
BRARTA 5% Fumiture and office equipment 10-25%
FARRRERE  10-25% Motor vehicles 18-25%
I 18-25%
The Group's property interests shown above were held under medium-
ARE B2 MBS AR RERA R term leases in the PRC.
HEA -

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 129
Annual Report 2013



130

e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2013

17. BE 17. GOODWILL
F&T
HK$000
A COST
RZZE——F—-A—H" At | January 2012, 31 December 2012
RZZT——F+-A=+—-HBE and 31 December 2013
—E—=F+-"A=+—H 5,397
BE IMPAIRMENT
Rn-ZT——%—F—H At | January 2012 10,494
ERERREERE Impairment loss recognised 2,899
%:g—_i‘l‘_ﬂ:‘l’—ﬁ At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 13,393
—E—=%+-A=+—H
IREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZE——F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 2,004

F=F—=f+t-A=+—H

RRERNANS  AECHE

ZRI5E

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to

Fh R i K R B B (

ENBZERNREELEMR /i\éi
Bful) RZF—=F+= Hf+
ZEBRTHEEARERSELEN -

$ﬁlﬁﬁur %W%%ﬁ%ﬁm%
HRAFYEREMGHZREREEA
&%ﬁv%ﬁ%?ﬁ%m%wﬁﬁ
ZRME MBI UAEE k2
RS EE 2R EI289%(ZF

ZF1431%) RETE - AR E R
HMEKRECELENBERRZBEM
Gttt o ERERGEEMNZERE L
WAl T eEfkEAEROR
Bl &5 o

REZ—=—F AEERRBEFEK
BitamXEREKEREETARA(EL
RMABIR])EL 2% 2,899,000 7T
EEERE RARLEMABRAD
FItEEMBHT A AAEEERE
REC BRIz

&E) BRAF

2013 £ i

the individual cash generating unit (“CGU") of the Operation of Wind
Farm segment. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 3|1 December
2013 allocated to the unit of operation of Wind Farm.

The Group performed impairment review for the remaining goodwill
of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast derived from the financial
budget covering a period of 5 years, which was prepared by using the
most recent financial results with projections approved by management
at discount rate of 12.89% (2012: 14.31%) for Operation of Wind
Farm, which reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable

amount.

Goodwill of HK$2,899,000 arising from the acquisition of Beijing CASC
Energine Wind Turbine Co,, Ltd. ("Beijing CASC") in the prior years
was fully impaired in 2012 as Beijing CASC had become inactive and no

future economic benefits were expected to be generated to the Group.
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18. BILEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Bl B 2 REFTE
Technical Licence B
know-how right Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
5% COST
RZZE——F—HF—H At | January 2012 71,838 = 71,838
[ 5 A& Exchange realignment 1991 = 1,991
NE Additions 2,632 6,696 9,328
RZE—ZF+=ZA=+—H At 3l December 2012 76,46 6,696 83,157
(& 5, A% Exchange realignment 1,374 165 1,539
NE Additions 28,034 = 28,034
BIEHE—RHEAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(B3E39) (Note 39) (77835) — (77,835)
RZZE—=F+=A=+—H At3l| December 2013 28,034 6,861 34,895
By AMORTISATION
RZE—=—F—HF—H At | January 2012 1,996 — 1,996
BE i, B Exchange realignment 55 — 55
FAZH Charge for the year 12,330 — 12,330
RZE——F+=-A=+—H At 3l December 2012 14,381 = 14,381
BEE 5 58 2 Exchange realignment 1,334 — 1,334
FRZH Charge for the year 6,683 687 7370
RIEHE — TR B Eliminated on deemed disposal
B (M3 39) of a subsidiary (Note 39) (18891) — (18,891)
RZE—=F+=A=+—H At3l December 2013 3,507 687 4,194
HREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZE—=F+=A=+—H At3l| December 2013 24,527 6,174 30,701
RZZF—ZF+=ZA=+—H At3l December20I2 62,080 6,696 68,776
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18.

BKEE &)

R R AR R TS SR

B 6EZEQE
iR A& 104

R-T—=F+_-A=1+—B 2Rl
EIERNEERBERD B NEEE2
MWEBITER S EEH - RZT—ZF
TZA=T—BZBMWERERNES
HEERD B MW B FIZiE iR R
BENBEEH(ANBRRAES  ZHE
NABEEAER - E—=FHE) -

R-E-——_FREREFIZEHEER
RO GPS MBI Al -

REFE ATz

18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over

the following period:

Technical know-how 6 years - 8 years

Licence rights 10 years

The technical know-how as at 3| December 2013 represents the
internally generated 2MW Electrically Excited Synchronous Motor for
Wind Energy Related Products segment. The technical know-how as at
31 December 2012 represented the 2MW Variable Propeller Double-
Fed Induction Generator for Wind Energy Related Products Segment
owned by a subsidiary which was deemed disposed in 201 3.

The licence right was purchased in 2012 which are GPS Terminal

Development licence rights for Telecommunication Business segment.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

NEBPBME NG ZEEHENT : Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follow:
2013 2012
FET TR
HK$’000 HK$000
I ETIRE 2 B (KTEE39) Cost of unlisted investments (Note 39) 411,660 340,725
B, SH B Exchange realignment 55,538 38,765

FEAE W R 108 A S Ho A 2 E A Share of post-acquisition profits and
(BB E R ARE R RF]) other comprehensive income, net of

dividend received and unrealised profit 6,087 20,485
473,285 399,975

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
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19. REEEATIZ2HER »2)

R-ZFE—=F+=-FA=+—8 itA3¥
ETERERAZEE 6810008 T(=ZF
— 4 : 681,000 70) K B W EEHE = A
Ao MRZE—=F+ZA=+—H " #
ERMBEARHEEEREELRER
HWA(ZT——4F : 7,184,000 7T ) ER
BERAZREPHER -

JE E T % & B AN 3 170,935,000 7 TT 15
FREZERERNIR KRR M AR
DA FEELENE39

RZE——F AEERBENFEE
253140008 T EHREEH L HR
BB 40%EE 48.78% °

RZE—ZF  AEEHEENE TH
BRARZENESTRLE=FH B
KREH 136100007 7T » 3 F i & R B
EARIER MRS 11,802,000 T °

e

EXBEATZMBEERAME

BRAKEEABERA 2 MHERS
ZHIIMT - ATHBE R R E TR
ERRMBHRE(RBEZENHREE
AIREDPAITR &8 -

BeRRRARREINZSREMBR
KA

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 31 December 2013 is
goodwill of HK$681,000 (2012: HK$681,000) arising on the acquisition
of associates. As at 3| December 2013, no unrealised profit (2012:
HK$7,184,000) arising on the sales of goods to an associate is recognised

in the investments in associates.

The addition in cost of unlisted investment of HK$70,935,000 represents
the investment in &k /NALRAFFE R BER M AR 2 8] during the year,
for details please refer to note 39.

The Group made capital injection of HK$25,314,000 into associates
in 2012, resulting in a change in shareholding percentage from 40% to
48.78%.

The Group disposed of its entire interests in certain associates to
independent third parties for a cash consideration of HK$13,610,000,
resulting in gain on disposal of interest in associates of HK$ ! 1,802,000 in
2012,

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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19. REFEATIZHER &) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EXBEATIZHBEESEBE (£) Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)
IEEERENREARATA(IERE Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
B ) Longyuan”)
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
MENVEE Current assets 197,537 295,044
FREEE Non-current assets 1,171,125 1,217,879
mEAE Current liabilities 442,100 189,294
FrnBaE Non-current liabilities 430,206 836,962
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
WA Revenue 182,303 179,577
FRENREEBARE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 34,528 43,198
FREBEERAIRE Dividends received from
the associate during the year 9,720 16,480

134 TERXERER(KE) FRAF
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu

Longyuan”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2013 2012

FET TFET

HK$’000 HK$000

TERBERCEERE Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 496,356 486,667

AEBRIEERME Proportion of the Group's

D AN ownership interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 25% 25%
AEBRIFHER Carrying amount of the Group's interest

- Zpd ] in Jiangsu Longyuan 124,089 121,667

EEHEXZHEATGEEH

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEBEHEFEA(ER)EN The Group's share of (loss)

profit for the year (19,518) 6,096

AEERZEHENA Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
a2 BERHEE interests in these associates 349,196 278,308

RZE—=F+-A=+—H &®&E
TEBENE ZFEBHIRMEE

Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 December 2013

are set out in note 42.
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20.

Fh R i K R B B (

BE—F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2013

NEeEBEZHELE 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
REBNALDE VT EHENT : Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follow:
2013 2012
FAET T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
REELFEZIFLTREMKA - Cost of unlisted investments in joint
R UK R A AR S ventures, net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,625,832 1,768,321
B 5 B Exchange realignment 246,415 202,012
BB ER - HIRARS Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend 99,439 98,026
EhEEFE Share of net assets 1,971,686 2,068,359
B R RERR Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,137) (652,137)
1,319,549 1,416,222

FEMBRENADERAKESEREM
BB 1,156,1060008 (T ——
F 1 1,156,1060008 L) - ZFF
T EEEZEERI155343,00078 T
i = —ZF E 4 763,000 78 T AT EM
AR E R FEEEE R A B 5% FIMER

AEERE—FERBLRERBER
BERHEARERARERSEZ] 2
40% e - WHERAEREZIRE -

REZF—=F+=ZA A5EBERE
BBEs 2 PEREET —RE=F
KR{EAE2760110008T BR-T—=
$+*ﬂ:+*E§+)\ﬁ‘rtﬂﬁ’§Llﬂl%ﬁ7\1H(E
REZZ—HE—AKE) - ZEXZNE
ﬁmﬁ&mﬁmﬁ% 5K | 1446,000 7 7T
1% 2 HEUWES 132,076,000 T ©

&E) BRAF

2013 £ i

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
HKS$1,156,106,000 (2012: HK$1,156,106,000) arising on the acquisition
of joint ventures with an amount of HK$1,155,343,000 arose in 2007,
while HK$763,000 arose in 2010 for additional interest of 5% in Jiangsu
CASC Wind Turbine Manufacture Co., Ltd.

In the prior year, the Group held a 40% interest in Beijing Wanyuan-
Henniges Sealing Systems Co., Ltd. (“Wanyuan-Henniges") and
accounted for the investment as a joint venture. In December 2013, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in Wanyuan-Henniges to a third
party at a consideration of HK$276,01 1,000 which was included in other
receivables as at 3| December 2013 (amount settled in January 2014).
This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain on disposal of
HK$132,076,000 in profit or loss after netting off the transaction cost of
HK$1,446,000.
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20. REELEZER @

RZZ—=F  AEEKRT—HE60%
TREPIZFTEERE - RERTAEE
¥ 7% E KA B 1,480,000 7T o
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CRREBEBRRE-ERAELEEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

In 2012, the Group established a new joint venture with 60%
shareholding percentage. The investment cost invested in the new
joint venture is HK$1,480,000. As all the decisions of the joint venture
regarding the operating and financial policies require unanimous consent
from all joint venturers, the investment was regarded as an investment

in a joint venture.

In 2012, the Group made a partial reversal of impairment loss of
HK$89,000,000 (out of the impairment loss previously recognised in
prior years of HK$293,242,000) in relation to the carrying amount of an
interest in a joint venture, Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management
Systems Co,, Ltd. (“Beijing Delphi”), which is engaged in the manufacture

of automotive engine management systems and components.

Beijing Delphi has recorded an increase in sales orders and has
showed continuous improvement in profit making for the past few
years. The actual sales and gross margin are higher than the budgeted
sales and gross margin of Beijing Delphi for the past few years. Taking
into account these facts, the directors of the Company believe that
the recoverable amount of the interest in Beijing Delphi has been
increased. The recoverable amount of the interest in the joint venture
is determined based on the value in use calculation using the Group's
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated by the joint venture based on a budget covering a
5-year period discounted at discount rate of 15.4%. The growth rate
being used for the 5-year period for operation of the joint venture is
5% based on financial budgets approved by the management of the
joint venture. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady growth rate of 3.5%. Since the recoverable amount is
higher than the carrying amount, the Group has made a partial reversal
of impairment loss of HK$89,000,000 for the year ended 3| December
2012.
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20. REELEZER @

EXGELEZMBERME

ARTGEERRLLEZHBENM
ZENWMT - LTHBERBEEIN A
EORMBIRR(REDENFREER

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint
venture, is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements

REFMR LB ° prepared in accordance with HKFRSs,
BECERAERINZERE VKR The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
RN ° consolidated financial statements.
TR EHEE R EERGERA Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
A(ZERE]D Ltd. (“Delphi”)
2013 2012
FET T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
MBAEE Current assets 1,193,108 1,209,380
FERBEE Non-current assets 470,245 356,460
mEAE Current liabilities 947,789 865,058

NEBERABERERATSE:

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following;

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 83,049 131,209
nBpEMABR(TEEEIR Current financial liabilities (excluding
H it A TRA KRB ) trade and other payables
and provisions) 533,975 496,066

13g THEMXERER(KE) FRAFE
2013 &
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20. REBLEZER #) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
EXGELECUMBERBE (&) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
ITRERGEEREREERAGRTRA Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
B(RERE] (&) Ltd. (“Delphi”) (Continued)
2013 2012
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
WA Revenue 3,397,754 3,353,787
FRRENREEBARE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 355,215 352,109
FAERERRRE Dividends received from Delphi
during the year 177,579 141,194
FRENEEATRE The above profit for the year include the following;
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
8 K Depreciation and amortisation 36,293 23,005
FEHA Interest income 3,535 2,565
M EFRZ Interest expense 11,366 14,565
PSR X Income tax expenses 61,798 63,825
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20. REELEZER @

EXSERRCMBANME (&)

IR BEHEERRBREERARRA
A(rEm|E) &)
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R 2 MR EE D < REEHE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summatrised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
Ltd. (“Delphi”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

EREZEEFE Net assets of Delphi 715,564 700,784

AEBERERBMEEER 2B Proportion of the Group's

ownership interest in Delphi 49% 49%

Bl Goodwill 641,322 621,826

RUBR A FEABR B Effect of fair value adjustment at acquisition 265,950 276,562
AEENEREER CREE Carrying amount of the Group's

interest in Delphi 1,257,899 1,241,772

EEHNERZEELRGEEEH

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

2013 2012

FET TRET

HK$’000 HK$000

AEESEFRER The Group's share of profit for the year 27,340 15,202
n Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 31 December

T-=F+-A=+—A A%E
ABERHEBFIRAES -

TE

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

2013 are set out in note 42.
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TtHESREE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
B LTTREZES Equity security listed in Hong Kong - 102,944

FEN - AEBEBERETRENEIRRG
BRARZIRE(REBHERIME
RAREMZBREZES)HETART
BNZE=T - REFA 1227450008
TC o MR R 5 B 7R 264,000 74 T 1% T 3R
& Al it € BLVE B 2 WS 3,633,000
AIT o

During the year, the Group disposed of its investment in Huadian Fuxin
Energy Corporation Limited, an equity security listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, to third parties in the open market for
total considerations of HK$122,745,000. Gain on disposal of available-
for-sale financial asset of HK$3,633,000 is recognised after netting off the
transaction cost of HK$264,000.

58 22. INVENTORIES
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
R % Raw materials 159,724 158988
FEm Work-in-progress 93,806 105,006
SUPX Finished goods 160,600 218,692
414,130 482,686
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23. BES R H MBI

Eo9REMEBFTBEE S ENKR
#X531,832,000% (= T — = F:
4936680008 7L )+ B Mk R R & H
66,701,000 B TL(ZZ — =4 : 65,687,000
BIL) e ZE—=F+ZA=+—HZE
SREMFGBELERETE=FHER
BRE116229008L(ZF—=F :
79,322,000/ 70 ) © KR I BESF(Z
T IB3F)ERBERKLE
E-ZREHRMFERER  ~EE
HRHEEDREHRREL THEES,TY
WEEEH - WTEETHBEATEEE
ERXFREERE—FNEE - REHE
SZRHA(MEERESREERBH)ITR
2B SRUGH (IR EE) RN REHRRT
R 2RI DT T

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$531,832,000 (2012: HK$493,668,000) net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$66,701,000 (2012: HK$65,687,000). The amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2013 included retention receivables for
the sales of wind turbines to third parties of HK$ 116,229,000 (2012:
HK$79,322,000). The balances will be settled upon the completion of
warranty period of | - 5 years (2012: | - 3 years) . For the remaining
balances of trade receivables, the Group allows credit periods for 90
days on average to its customers for sales of goods and rendering of
services. At the discretion of the executive directors, several major
customers were allowed to settle their balances beyond the credit
terms up to one year. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances, presented based on the invoice dates
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective

revenue recognition dates:

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$000

FET TET

30HA Within 30 days 116,578 280,280
31E9%H Between 31 - 90 days 194,305 4987
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 6,437 7,112
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 747 85916
HR—F Over | year 213,765 115373
531,832 493,668

AEBZE SRR AERBERERSE
154,566,000 7T < EMBEFH(ZFT —=
£ ¢ 163,59500087T) © ZERKERR
SHRBH  MASEMABERES
B AEBUTREZRSHEB 2 EME
R ZERWERRZ FHRER A365R
(ZZ——%:3650) °

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$154,566,000 (2012: HK$163,595,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 365 days (2012: 365 days).
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

T

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TET

B Overdue by:
0&90H Between O - 90 days 6,437 7,112
91Z [80H Between 91 - 180 days 747 70966
838 180 H Over 180 days 147,382 85517
e Total 154,566 163,595

AKE-REBMAEB36 HHEK
RERBERE ARBAALR %%
B EA365 A A FE MR — A E - 1
HWTEENBERTREREENZETE

The Group will normally provide fully for all receivables overdue 365
days because historical experiences is such that receivables that are past
due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for some major

customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the executive

EERERI) o directors.
RERBESEHNT Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FAET FHET
FHEEER Balance at beginning of the year 65,687 70,143
BE i, S B Exchange realignment 250 517
REME DR Z Impairment loss recognised in respect
REEE of trade receivables 764 45
B RE 5 K Recovery of impairment loss in respect
ZRBEEE of trade receivables — (5018)
FREEA Balance at end of the year 66,701 65,687
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23.

24.

Fh R i K R B B (

BaREMEKR =)

RERBEEREREISAR, RRF
PEARER B & E AR 5 8 ERRE R
EHRUWARR - A KB 5l % F A5 5k
FAEMERS -

REMEMHEPA - AEBZHTE
SHEHEKMeTREERP2EEE
ERRAEEPZEERE -BTEFZ
RELL2ZBTLEELBEEITTEDR
e ASEEERAERRECLEER

8 66%(ZF—ZF : 67%) B ZEWK

BR AR 8 B IR AR E

AERR-Z—Z=F+-A=+—H2Z
Hitt ERABDIELES G E 2 BN
B276011,000BT(ZE—=F - &)
WAL MERE 126140008 T(=F
& 112231,000% )« FENBA
BIRBHEE ZE£61,0520008 (=%
— —F 1 88,820,000/87T) * TAfTIEBER
88,259,000 B TL(Z T — 4 : 82,7|4,000
BIL) BHEEZRUFEE ZEK
Z §£471,380000/8 m(=Z & — = F ¢
48,032,000 7C) R B EEN —H & & b
ERBREE 2 EWEE 7371400075 T
(ZZ— 4 : 482950008 TT) MR =T
—ZFREK—FEEE R TRE 16,480,000
FBIT o

AEBFMBREREENMEFE 2 KK
B0 BH AR o

FEWrFEfT B A B

RZB-—=F+"A=+—8  EUKH
ERARAERANT  RERKRERE
B-RT——F RUBEDRAZRAS
BEHME AR 2EREB30EN
AERE -

ERBE AR RERBERBREE A
7] 3 I8 257,7720008 7T * B EK R K
% B o 5k TR IE 60,272,000 7 7T A &K
- GE RS 365 BIEAE -

&E) BRAF

2013 £ i

23.

24,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/and have no
material transactions with the Group during the year. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer's credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 66% (2012:
67%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit history managed by the Group's marketing team.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 31 December 2013 are
consideration receivable for disposal of a joint venture HK$276,01 1,000
(2012: Nil), dividend receivable from a joint venture of HK$12,614,000
(2012: HK$12,231,000), deposits for purchase of inventories for
subsidiaries in the PRC of HK$61,052,000 (2012: HK$88,820,000), VAT
recoverable of HK$88,259,000 (2012: HK$82,714,000), bills receivable
of HK$471,380,000 (2012: HK$48,032,000) in relation to the settlement
of trade receivables and bills receivable of HK$73,714,000 (2012:
HK$48,295,000) in relation to the settlement of dividend receivable
from a joint venture and dividend receivable from an associate of
HK$ 16,480,000 in 2012.

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days for both years.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts due from associates at 31 December 2013 are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The amounts due from
associates are trade nature, unsecured, non-interest bearing and have
credit period of 30 to 90 days in 2012.

Included in the balance of amounts due to associates are receipts in
advance of HK$257,772,000 from associates which are unsecured
and non-interest bearing. The remaining amount of HK$60,272,000 is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have a credit period of 365 days.
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ZERBEOERREEDLER
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1109400008 7C)  EHBEERTE
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FEMASEEFEREBEAS 6,148,000
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—E-=F+-A=t+-BzREKA%E
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F 1295200008 ) BRBEFELE
BETEELENERERS R
T-hFERBERKEE -

AT -—HEECEZHBERERT
EELE—REPHN—HEUBEER
62580008 M(ZE—ZF: &) Z
BECEBRERERNAEESFHRSE
MRS IEAREL BHERBEAE
BH RS REEREE RZT—=
F AEERBETEECE—REFPZ
RITHRERRITIEL B HHELR 22,573,000
B ZEECERBRERASEES
HHRASELREERRES - MHE
RER=ZZ—=FIH £EETHEF
ARITREAZAELEZRFIREE
& © 22573000 B L2 RIBEZERET
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$ 104,908,000 (2012: HK$110,940,000), of which loans advanced to
the joint venture amounted to HK$71,229,000 (2012: HK$69,063,000)
bears fixed interest rate at 6% (2012: 5.6%) per annum and are
repayable in July 2014 (2012: repayable in June and July 2013). The joint
venture has pledged its land and buildings with a carrying amount of
HK$61,148,000 to the Group to secure the loan. The remaining amount
of HK$33,679,000 (2012: HK$41,877,000) is non-interest bearing,
repayable on demand and are expected to be settled within 12 months
from the end of the reporting period. The joint venture has entered
into arrangements with the Group in connection with the above loans
of HK$71,229,000 (2012: HK$69,063,000) and other current account
balance of HK$23,404,000 (2012: HK$30,832,000) as at 3| December
2013 that these amounts shall be repaid from the proceeds upon the
realisation of the land and buildings and certain other assets of that joint

venture.

The remaining balance of HK$30,166,000 (2012: HK$29,520,000) in
the amounts due from joint ventures at 3| December 2013 are the
retention receivables for the sales of wind turbines to a joint venture
that took place in prior years which will be settled upon the completion

of warranty period in 2015.

Included in the amount due to a joint venture is a financial guarantee of
HK$6,258,000 (2012: Nil) granted to a customer of the joint venture.
The joint venture deposited the same amount to the Group as a
guarantee deposit under the arrangement. The balance is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. In 2012, the Group
issued a financial guarantee of HK$22,573,000 to a bank in respect of
a banking facility granted to a customer of the joint venture. The joint
venture deposited the same amount to the Group as guarantee deposit
under the arrangement. In 2013, the financial guarantee has expired, the
Group no longer used its banking facility to guarantee the customer of
the joint venture. The amount of HK$22,573,000 was fully refunded to
the joint venture during the year.
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26. RITEE ERPRITER

RITERERMIPRITER

RITAESIR00I%E |.25% 2 BITH IR
MER(ZE——F  001%E 1.25%)5T 8 °

BROBRBETINEHERYEER
MONEREEHERA

BT HK$S

26. BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.25% (2012: 0.01% to 1.25%) per annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

are related.
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FEx FET
39,937 2,305

B AR 1T 17 Z IR 0.35% 2 B E & F =
(ZF—=—F:035%):t 8 - CHEAER
173 393120008 (=T — = F -
24,947,000 7T ) B B ES T IRITE A
ZER UHBERRSEE  HENZ
T-ME=-AEERBEERER

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.35% (2012:
0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
HK$9,312,000 (2012: HK$24,947,000), have been pledged to secure
certain bank facilities and are therefore classified as current assets. It
will be released in March 2014 upon the settlement of the related

borrowings.



e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. B RHEMERR

Eo9REMENFBEESER
3(739,882,000% (= T — = F:
419,898,000/87T) ° NEBBE N H4LIE
EEE30EE0HMNEESR - EHEM
TR ERTHEREZR ZRR TN
T

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$739,882,000 (2012: HK$419,898,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of

the reporting period:

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$000

FET TIET

30BA Within 30 days 168,244 125,720
3IE9%H Between 31 - 90 days 216,204 159,941
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 145,202 23,540
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 160,767 71,541
HiB—F Over | year 49,465 39,156
739,882 419,898

RZEBE—=%+-HA=+—8" &
AREB EMENROEREET
T2 & 5t 7% 782,599,000 L(Z T — =
F:6341,0008 L) BRE P KA
18,852,000 Jo( =& — = 4 : 9,548,000
BL) s HERES 25440008 L(ZF
—Z4F 1 6,166000787T)  FERHEHAK A
13,212,000 (=% — = 4 : 3,730,000
BL) s B AR A $4378000%8
T(ZF — ZF :4280,000% 7t ) & &
4357290008 T(ZF — = F -
30,139,000 L) AR=ZFE—Z—FEFNT
JErE I RS AR S 3,996,000 7T ©

Included in the Group's other payable at 31 December 2013 are
accruals for construction work of HK$2,599,000 (2012: HK$6,341,000),
receipt in advance from customers of HK$18,852,000 (2012:
HK$9,548,000), project guarantee deposits of HK$2,544,000 (2012:
HK$6,166,000), accrued transportation cost of HK$ 13,212,000
(2012: HK$3,730,000), office rental payable of HK$4,378,000
(2012: HK$4,280,000) and bills payable of HK$35,729,000 (2012:
HK$30,139,000) and dividend payables to non-controlling interests of
HK$3,996,000 in 2012.
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28. RIEEE 28. WARRANTY PROVISION
RIEBBEEEREAEENAIEE Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
R 2 RIEE 2 35 7E 1% 3 £ & best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be

R mHER S EET 2 RE - required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of
wind turbines.

(REBEEE Movement in the warranty provision:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FAET FET
FH 2 iR Balance at beginning of the year 31,218 22,380
BE S B Exchange realignment 1,040 621
RETIE R Additional provisions recognised 17,336 14,204
ARAE & — PRI P 88 2 BB )b 8 Eliminated on deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(P 5E39) (Note 39) (6,791) —
PRkEE Utilisation of provision (6,866) (5987)
FIR 7 5k Balance at end of the year 35,937 31,218
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29. & 29. BORROWINGS
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FAET FET
RITEHER (M) Short term bank loans (Note a) 572,374 755,380
BREEHER(MTD) Short term portion of shareholder’s loans
(Note b) 317,985 —
BRERAER(MED) Long term portion of shareholder's loans
(Note b) 992,113 961,954
Hit iz e R (MRt ) Short term other loans (Note c) — 36,998
Hi RBEHR (M d) Long term other loans (Note d) 72,234 82,370
1,954,706 1,836,702
B S RRE B EmA Less: Amount due within one year
R—FRNEEZFER under current liabilities (890,359) (792,378)
—FR B E 7 F0R Amount due after one year 1,064,347 | 044,324
AEEREEZIHBARMT - The maturity of the Group's borrowings
is as follows:
—£R Within one year 890,359 792,378
MEZRF Between two to five years 992,113 961,954
BBRF Over five years 72,234 82,370
1,954,706 1,836,702
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The amount at 3| December 2013 represents unsecured bank loans
of HK$572,374,000 or RMB450,000,000 (2012: HK$724,548,000
or RMB587,500,000). In addition, a bank loan of HK$30,832,000 or
RMB25,000,000 in 2012 was secured by land and buildings with carrying
amount of HK$86,932,000 at 3| December 2012.

Loans of HK$52 1,497,000 or RMB4 10,000,000 bear fixed-rate interest at
6%. Loans of HK$233,705,000 or RMB 189,500,000 and HK$ 1 10,995,000
or RMB90,000,000 bore fixed-rate interest at 6% and 6.56% per annum
respectively in 2012.

Loans of HK$50,877,000 or RMB40,000,000 (2012: HK$410,680,000 or
RMB333,000,000) bear floating-rate interest at 0% (2012: 5% to 10%)
on top of People’s bank of China benchmark interest rate per annum.
Loans of HK$372,819,000 or RMB302,300,000 at 3| December 2012
bore floating-rate interest at 5% to 10% on top of People's Bank of
China benchmark interest per annum were fully repaid in 2013. Loans of
HK$36,382,000 or RMB29,500,000 at 3| December 2012 bore fixed-
rate interest at 6% and a loan of HK$37,861,000 or RMB30,700,000 at
3| December 2012 bore floating-rate interest at 10% on top of People's
Bank of China benchmark interest per annum were eliminated through

the deemed disposal of a subsidiary in 2013.

The loans are repayable in 2014 (2012: 2013) and are used to finance
the operations of the Group.
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co., Ltd.
("ASTF") as the trustee in aggregate amounting to HK$1,310,098,000
or RMB,030,000,000 (2012: HK$961,954,000 or RMB780,000,000)
with HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2012: HK$225,689,000 or
RMB183,000,000) additionally raised in the year.

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 3.7%
to 5.0% (2012: 3.7% to 4.88%) per annum. Loans of HK$317,985,000
or RMB250,000,000 (2012: HK$308,319,000 or RMB250,000,000),
HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2012: Nil), HK$508,776,000
or RMB400,000,000 (2012: HK$493,309,000 or RMB400,000,000)
and HK$ 165,352,000 or RMB 130,000,000 (2012: HK$160,326,000 or
RMB130,000,000) are repayable in April 2014, March 2015, April 2016
and July 2017 respectively.

The amount represented a loan advanced from a financial institution
in the PRC. The loan was unsecured and carries interest at benchmark
loan rates set by the People's Bank of China in the PRC. The loan was
eliminated through the deemed disposal of a subsidiary in 201 3.

The amount represents a loan of HK$72,234,000 or RMB56,790,000
(2012: HK$82,370,000 or RMB66,790,000) advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,
bears floating-rate interest at 0.9 times of the People’s Bank of China
Benchmark interest rate that is 5.90% (2012: 6.12%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020.
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EEPIE 30. DEFERRED TAXATION
REANGAHBEERAEMNE  ETEL For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
HEBEEERNBRED THY - WA financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
BHBME CEEHIBLELDIT offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TET
EREBEEE Deferred tax assets 2,009 3,090
BILERIARE Deferred tax liabilities (20,988) (18,823)
(18,979) (15,733)
NEAEER F—EECORIATEXNEL The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
MEeECEE)RAEESHNT and movements thereon during the current and prior year.
EfRE MEAE
L/ES Hitt  A2K&EF
Revaluation (Kf&F) Undistributed
of investment Others profits of FCE
properties (note) subsidiaries Total
TFET FET & T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZT——F—H—H At January 2012 5,680 (3985) 13,508 15,203
BE 3 AR Exchange adjustments 157 (84) 3 76
Bai¥ Charge to profit or loss — 979 1,064 2,043
B Xtz R E RS PRC withholding tax paid — — (1,589) (1,589)
RZE——F At 3| December 2012 5,837 (3,090) 12,986 15733
+=A=+-AH
B SR Exchange adjustments 183 (65) I 129
BRRIH Charge to profit or loss 2,346 70 432 2,848
BXfMzHEENH  PRC withholding tax paid — — (807) (807)
RIELE—FHMBAR  Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(P&E39) (Note 39) = 1,076 = 1,076
R-T—=% At 31 December 2013 8,366 (2,009) 12,622 18,979
+ZA=+—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences rising on
government grants and warranty provision.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$989,972,000 (2012: HK$874,664,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$394,029,000 (2012: HK$374,973,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five
years from 2014 to 2018 (2012: from 2014 to 2017).

At 31 December 2013, the Group has deductible temporary difference
of HK$189,348,000 (2012: HK$139,676,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred taxation of HK$12,622,000 (2012: HK$12,986,000) has been
provided in respect of temporary differences attributable to those
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$35,781,000 (2012: HK$20,878,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31. BAFHHED

R-BE—=F+=-A=+—H BKF
& 81304940008 (= T — = F:
9,033,000/ 7T ) /3 B BT 4 Bl 3t B B
ME - BERIBREBREMNR T 2H
B - Ze B REARE T RET(RE
W% - BERRZEN) 2 A ERFHEZ
331/, FIR B HER © £58 10366,000/87T
(ZT—=F: &) EPEREHEM
BAEBMETASE 2 H8)

31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2013, government grants of HK$30,494,000 (2012:
HK$9,033,000) represent subsidies granted by PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss
over 33!/, years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and
buildings (included in property, plant and equipment). An amount of
HK$10,366,000 (2012: Nil) represents subsidies granted to the Group

by PRC government/authorities for telecommunication business.

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
REBRMELZ D - Analysed for reporting purpose as:
FREBERE Non-current liabilities 39,792 8,531
mEBE Current liabilities 1,068 502
40,860 9,033
32. k& 32. SHARE CAPITAL
KRB & E &8
Number
of shares Amount
HK$000
FREMEO. 0BT EAR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
RZZE—=—%—H—H- At | January 2012, 3| December 2012
— T —F+-A=+—H and 3| December 2013
kR=ZE—=%+=-RA=1+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
RZZE—Z—F—H—H" At | January 2012, 3| December 2012
—Z——%+-A=+—H and 3| December 2013
k=ZZE—=F+=ZRA=1+—H 3968,995,668 396,900

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the

borrowings disclosed in note 29, net of cash and cash equivalents and

equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share

capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.

The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ST RIER Categories of financial instruments
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
TREE Financial assets
ERREUERER(BERS Loans and receivables (including cash
REEEEY) and cash equivalents) 2,208,602 1,337,755
AtHESREE Available-for-sale financial asset — 102,944
2,208,602 1,440,699
EHAE Financial liabilities
B AR Amortised cost 3,026,878 2,460,825
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from/to associates, amounts due from/to joint
ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out

below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2013 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position, while the Group's maximum exposure to credit
risk due to financial guarantees provided by the Group is the amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees issued by the
Group as disclosed in Note 41. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has concentration of
credit risk as 27% (2012: 24%) and 68% (2012: 73%) of the total trade
receivables due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. The Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 73% (2012:
79%) of the total amounts due from joint ventures is due from one
joint venture. The Group monitors the exposure to credit in respect of
the amounts due from associates and joint ventures through exercising
influence or control over their financial and operating policy decisions

and reviewing their financial position on a regular basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2013 and 2012 (note 26 for details)
and vaniable-rate bank borrowings for 2012 (note 29 for details). The
management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and will

consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate borrowings for 2013 and 2012 (note 29 for details), fixed-
rate bank balances for 2012 (note 26 for details) and amounts due from
joint ventures that bear fixed interest rate (note 25 for details). The
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider repaying
the fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of People's Bank of China benchmark interest rate.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank balances at the end
of the reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the
beginning of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings have been 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax
profit would have decreased/increased by approximately HK$72,000
(2012: HK$51,000).

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposures should the need arise.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source of
liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations due

for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end

of the reporting period.
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34. ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ- (&) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
SREAMGEEEERBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
RBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REEERFIZERE Liquidity and interest risk tables
L 337 FRR
REAE ReiE
Weighted 3R 2
average  HEXE  SMIBER  I1E3EA Bk SENL Total BEE
effective % Lessthan [-3 Imonths |25 Over undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate ~ On demand | month months  tolyear  [-Syears Syears  cashflows amount

fin TEr f&r T&r 7 f&r fér T&r
& HKSU0  HKSUOD  HKSORD  HKSUO0  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSURD  HKSUO

= 003

HittAEE Non-ctrictie franci abittes

B REMER Trade end other payables - - 185,111 B 307,114 14,565 - 805,217 805,277

fBE-%8 Borrowings - fixed rate 5.04 - - 03,752 802,058 1101327 = 1967137 1831595

fEE-%8 Bomowings - foatng rate 5.94 - - - 53,180 - 107,194 160,474 13,11

ERBEAT Amounts due o assodates - 318,044 - - - - - 318,044 318,044

ER-RAghE Amount due to a joint venture - 6,78 - - - - - 6,78 6,78

BisER Finencel guarentees - - - - 50,776 - - 50,776 50,776
343m 185,111 301,519 [203,888 1,175,892 107,194 3307986 3,135,081

5k 012

Hittaer Nor-cematie francal labites

ERREERT Trade and other payables - 3% 140307 167448 116039 39,15 - 466%6 46696

EE-%8 Bormowings - ied rate 480 = = = B4 L3613 — 15T 1306654

RE-F%8 Borrowings - floating rate 628 = 12349 = B4 = 139968 597568 530048

EREBENTR Amounts due to associates — 34584 - — - - - 134584 [34584

El-HagpER Amount due to ajoint venture - 053 - - - - - 053 053

HHER Financal guarantees — - — — 4738 — — 47238 4738

161,153 16381 167448 86426 1175269 1998 274086 2508063
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155850008 TAREZREENE(ZZ
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INEERE) -

34.

35.

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

J the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2013, the Group was committed to capital
expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately
HK$15,585,000 relating to construction of an investment property
(2012: HK$86,400,000 relating to its investment in sino-foreign
enterprise of the Group).
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36. BEHERIE

FREEARBA

RBEHRETEE  AEEREBETATH
HEEROMBENRR LI RETF RE

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in

FAOZIEMNT - respect of land and buildings as set out below:
2013 2012
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 8,875 9,225
F_FEEAF(BEMEREEA)  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 4,257 2,862
13,132 12,087

BO—BRAFIMER (=T ——F: W
F)ETE  MESREBATE -
FEEERHBEA

WS MR  AEMEES Y
THEAF B EREMT

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two years (2012:
two years) and rentals are fixed for the lease period.
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

—FR Within one year 7,117 483
F_FEFRF(ERMFRELA)  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 24,833 4448
RERE After five years 76,399 —
108,349 593l

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§
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BHEFIEE

AKERBELEMAESERERETAS
HAEEHB([Z18)) - ZetBIZE
ENBAKEEENHEREYRIEEA
EH| - NEEABEHMKAZ 5%
W MR IMEH RFHR -

RRAAZ BB R R RS B BB
BEEZBERERRARBHET 2K
B ARAZHEMBRAARKEEZ
FHAERKBMERETE DL IES
HRA IR o AR B LR IKRHIF
B om—RERRBATEHAEL

=
Ny

ey

o

ST AIB 25 2 B 7 4258 8,520,000 7 JT (=
T— 4 : 98770008 ) IR EE R
REHHANENZETE 2 ER -

HEEATZR S &R

BB sE24 - 25 R29FT B E 4N 0 K&
BEEENAE THIEARGRES

() HPEBFEFAEREZXS

ASERERETEHFRRE
Bl KREHIITEEATEN
ZER(BAHEHEER)ETEY
RERETRE - I AKH
A5 RE i BB 2 i
BETZBRARAEHE -

37.

38.

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong, The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions

under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$8,520,000 (2012:
HK$9,877,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 29, the Group has the
following significant transactions and balances with related companies:

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“‘government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.
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38. HRE A+ 2355 &8s

(&)

(i)

BRpHBFHEAEEZX S

(&)

() HRTHBKEZIRE

(1

R-ZE—Z=ZF+-4
=tT—HZEERER
BAE R ERTME L
Bt B 1 Rl R B B 7
ERETAZNEER
(Z2—ZF:m%)
A ££1310099,0005% 7T
3 A R #1,030,000,000
=z T - = &
961,954,000 T 3 A
R #780,000,00075 ) °
EBRERAEERR
B EF8ENT37%
B50%(—F— %
37%E488%) 0 B
3179850008 gk A R
#250,0000007L(= &
— Z 4 : 308,319,000/
7r 3k A & % 250,000,000
JC )~ 317,985,000/ T
% A & 250,000,000
T ZE—ZF: &\)"
508,776,000 LA K
#400,0000007C(= &
— Z & 493,309,000/
7T 3k A & % 400,000,000
7T ) K 165,320,000 7T
% A & 130,000,000
= B - = F:
160,326,000 L8 A R
#130,0000007C ) # 2
AR=—Z—WFEM™A -
—ET-H%=H =%
—NEFERARZE—t
FLARE-

TEMABRER(KE) ARAF

2013 £ i

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group

(1

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2013 were
six (2012: four) loans advanced from CALT through
CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee totalling
HK$1,310,099,000 or RMBI,030,000,000 (2012:
HK$961,954,000 or RMB780,000,000) which are
unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging from
3.7% to 5.0% (2012: 3.7% to 4.88%) per annum.
Loans of HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000
(2012: HK$308,319,000 or RMB250,000,000),
HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2012:
Nil), HK$508,776,000 or RMB400,000,000
(2012: HK$493,309,000 or RMB400,000,000)
and HK$165,320,000 or RMB130,000,000 (2012:
HK$160,326,000 or RMB130,000,000) are repayable
in April 2014, March 2015, April 2016 and July 2017

respectively.
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38. HRE A+ 2355 &8s

(&

() HPEBFEREEZXS

(&)

(a) BEFRMBEECIRS(E)

)

R-Z—=%+—-#
++A ARAF—F
MEARRREM
8k &b —fE 2 B B
BDEmAME R
T 2 # % (i X
M) R A & 5T 1%
Z Bt AFEHE
M 1% 18 & 1 5% 1R
[ i R AR —
EMWREKER B
HoFR - AREM
R AMEHEE SR
/5 14,850,0007 JT 3
A R #11,8323007C
ZIMWE X
B BRARZFHESH
RARBBHA-Z
—=fF+-A=+—
BzAfhp - RZF
——F AEREHT
MAMBEESE A
9,963,000 B LA K
#8,078,0007C 2 [&
WER RBBRY
BHARSHBEINAE
UNGTE= Y e
FENA+—HZAMH
;:]:: o

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

)

On 27 December 2013, a subsidiary of the
Company, IM Composite Material, entered into a
contracting agreement with Aerospace Research
Institute of Materials & Processing Technology
(“Aerospace Material”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CALT, pursuant to which IM Composite Material
is to supply a set of 3MW wind turbine blade
mould to Aerospace Material in accordance with
the terms of the agreement. During the year, IM
Composite Material supplied the 3MW wind turbine
blade mould to Aerospace Material amounted
to HK$14,850,000 or RMBI1,832,300. Details
of the transaction are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 3| December 2013. In 2012,
IM Composite Material supplied wind turbine blades
and the associated services incidental thereto to
Aerospace Material amounted to HK$9,963,000
or RMB8,078,000. Details of the transaction were
set out in the Company's announcement dated | |
September 2012.
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38. HRE A+ 2355 &8s

(&)

(i)

BRpHBFHEAEEZX S

(&)

(b) HEMHBFERIXS

(1

—E—=Z%+—-A
=t+—HZBEBRE
B — B R R
HlERREBA N 2 —F
& 7722340007 T
g A R #56790,000
T(Z T — = F:
82,370,000 7T 3 A
R # 66,790,000 7T ) *
FZHIBRERRRF
B & R & 5 5.90%(=
T—ZF:612%)
TER_-_Z_ZTF
T—RAZHEE-

TEMABRER(KE) ARAF
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2013 was
a loan of HK$72,234,000 or RMB56,790,000 (2012:
HK$82,370,000 or RMB66,790,000) advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The
amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate interest at
590% (2012: 6.12%) per annum and is repayable in
full in November 2020.
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38. HRE A+ 2355 &8s

(&)

() HPEBFEREEZXS

(&)

(b) HEMBRERZRS(E)

)

AKETEEMKG
HAEBEXHH
KeBERR BA
EEEREEBE
K5 ZFRAEA
HEBDBBUS=
7o REEMEET
EPRHtERAES
TEER S EFR
R BEEHD IO
b@ERHRERE
Hi B ERE R EE
TEBTIER -
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(&N
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beoh - NEERER
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B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities
(Continued)

@)

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors consider
those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group's business with them
are concermned. The Group also has certain sales and
purchases transactions with certain customers and
suppliers in which the directors are of the opinion
that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of
the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions are with other government-related
entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings are

with government-related entities.
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38. HRE A+ 2355 &8s

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

(%) BALANCES (Continued)
(i) REMEAELZRS (ii) Transactions with other related parties
(@) HBEEY FEMEEARR (@)  For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note
- F2HME24 - 24,
b) HHERK ENEELER (b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to
- F2REMES - note 25.
() RFEAR  FEERBEAL (c)  During the year, the Group had the following significant
ZBERRGWT transactions with related parties:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BEENAEE Purchase of goods from associates 23,678 134,304
REMARHRIBZ Interest on loan from a
IR EFFI S shareholder, ASTF 55,951 43976
ERE—FMEAREA Interest on other loan due to
BRYEN 2R a non-controlling shareholder with
PR 2 EoAh & 5B, significant influence over a subsidiary 4,404 5279
KEEGEREZFSWA  Interest income from joint ventures 3,186 7,137
(i) REMFEERFZXS (&) (ii) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)
(d FEEBABZHM (d)  Compensation of key management personnel
FAETEEERAB Z2HMW The remuneration of key management during the year was
T : as follows:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
55 E R F Short-term benefits 6,876 6,379
BEBR 2 1B A Post-employment benefits 15 14
6,891 6,393

TEEBABZHMbEHM
ZEERBEARRRENSE

BEE

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

The remuneration of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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39. R{EH E—RIMBAE

FR-AEER—EKNE R BGEM
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Bl EEBAREERLERE) 2 F
TR RN EMEEEES 2
ESflc AEENEEZESHESR
TRESERERZ=EZRIEME -
TE-_FT—=FMNA—BRMABER -
ER - AEBBEITES 2EFRAH
I EREEHMNEE 2 B —AREEMN
“REEEBERAR YE-T—=
FUNA—BER - IBEEHREERNK
(BEMNRE 2 BBLEEE) 2 RER
RANZZZREBI=ZZ)EKES -
Et - AREEK LS EE N EEEBL
EEBzEN - BT —=FMA—A
B NS ER A E BN R B 2 TR I o
RBIELER  ASBREZEHNR
B2 41.28% 2 BRHE - BRMNEREK BAKE

ZBERA] -

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

39. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Group and the non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary, &M i K ek ERE BT A PR 2 8] (“Suzhou Wind Energy”),
whose business is manufacturing and trading of wind turbines, agreed to
change the proportion of directors in the board of directors of Suzhou
Wind Energy. The number of directors that can be appointed by the
Group has decreased from three to two out of five board members
with effect from | April 2013. In the current year, the Group has
transferred a right to appoint a director irrevocably to &/ =FHE &EE
E B A7), another shareholder of Suzhou Wind Energy, with effect
from | April 2013. All decisions about operating and financial (which
are relevant activities of Suzhou Wind Energy) require three-fith votes
(ie. three votes). As a result, the Group has lost its ability to direct the
relevant activities of Suzhou Wind Energy. The Group has lost its control
over Suzhou Wind Energy since | April 2013. The Group continues to
hold 41.28% equity interest of Suzhou Wind Energy after the deemed

disposal and Suzhou Wind Energy became an associate of the Group.
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39. H{EHE—RIMEAT &) 39. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)
FHINEENREHERRZZEEAD The net assets of Suzhou Wind Energy at the date of deemed disposal
T : were as follows:
1.4.2013
FET
HK$’000
ME - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 108,403
BIVEE Intangible assets 58,944
EEFIBEE Deferred tax assets 1,076
FE Inventories 111,949
B 5 R H A FEUGR Trade and other receivables 102,541
RITHEBRIRE Bank balances and cash 9,718
ECVE L INE Trade and other payables (100,323)
A Borrowings (111,241)
RIERE Warranty provision (6,791)
FEEME Net assets 174,276
JEFE 1 Non-controlling interests (103,341)
BREEHREN RS FEEM Net assets transferred to interest in an associate 70,935
BIEHEEFRSMEEHE Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal
BEHERITHEBRER S Bank balances and cash disposed of 9,718
AAGBEEZ ARG ELERSEHEA The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of the
NEME AR 7B EBENDEEZ YA retained interest classified as interest in the associate at the date of
FEBREREERE o deemed disposal approximated to its carrying amount.

170 TEMXERER(KE) FRAFE
2013 &
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FTEHFHEXSH

RZZE—=F  AEBENUKAX
794000008 TT(ZF—ZF : &)k
—HIREME - ZREMEHLH A E—
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In 2013, the Group acquired an investment property with a cost of
HK$79,400,000 (2012: Nil). The investment property was partially
settled by deposits paid in prior year of HK$ 15,899,000 (2012: Nil).

In 2013, the Group has used its existing inventories of HK$28,034,000
(2012: Nil) to generate a technical know-how. Details of the technical

know-how has disclosed in note |8.

In 2012, the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary transferred
property, plant and equipment of HK$47,502,000 to the subsidiary as

capital contribution in the subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2012, payable of HK$3,996,000 represented

dividend declared to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2012, an amount of HK$6,341,000 for the
construction and acquisition of fixed assets was outstanding and included

in other payables.

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2013 2012
FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
Guarantee given to a bank, in respect of
a banking facility granted to an associate
— amount guaranteed 44,518 24,665
— amount utilised 25,439 24,665
Guarantee given to a bank, in respect of
a banking facility granted to a third party
— amount guaranteed —_ 22,573
— amount utilised —_ =
Guarantee given to a third party 6,258 =

925 FRZATELTEX -

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the guarantee are not

significant.
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42. TEMBAT - BELTR
EEREEH

RZE—ZFER-_FT——-F+_H
ZT-BZASEEENBRR - BE
REIRAECEERNT ¢

42.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

RAER

Name of company

WEAR

Subsidiaries

EEBRMALRAE -

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:

RN BEERAA

China Aerospace Telecommunications Limited

mAEEARAHA

(ARMARRE (BR) BRAR)
CASTEL Hong Kong Limited

(Formerty known as China Aerospace

Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited)

REEXERAT
Tin Shun Industrial Limited

NRERARAA

New Image Development Limited

MEERARAE

Crownpluss International Limited

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

Company at 3| December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

BRTEEREAZ

VAT RAER AL

Nominal value of KRRBE% REBEL%

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capitall held by attributable TEER

registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %

10,000 57T 100 100 - — DHETEEK

HK$10,000 Distribution of
broadband business

10,0007 - — - 100 AEEBXH

HK$10,000 Distribution of
broadband business

VBT 100 100 - —  DHARKER

HK$2 Distnbution of
elevator products

87 00 10— — #EER

HKS$I Investment holding

| BT 100 100 - — REER

HK§ | Investment holding
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42. TEMBAT  BEATR

EELESEH )

LE%R

Name of company

HEARZ)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

EREFMRAE -

Registered and operating in the PRC:

ERBRIZERA
Beijing Energine Industry Co,, Ltd**

IHMABRBLERBERAAF
Jiangsu Aerospace Wanyuan
REPM Motor Co, Ltd*

MARER(AZ)BNEBERAA!
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Power Co, Ltd*

MABRREE (R BRAR

REEMABRIERAEERAF
Inner Mongolia Energine New
Energy Development Co, Ltd

REEMAEREERBHEBRAT
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Wind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd*

s — g —

B =Ff A=t AUFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)
ERTERRAZ
[EIEVARITEES RAER AL
Nominal value of RAABE% REBEL%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capitall held by attributable FEER
registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %
ARE 1182511007 - — 100 100 HEZRRHHEREE
RMBI18251,100 Investment holding
and distnbution of wind
turbine generators
AR 500000007 - — 52 5 HERMEABEER
RMB50,000,000 Manufacture and distnbution
of elevator products
AR 93,800,000 - — 55 5 E5EE
RMB93,800,000 Operation of wind farm
200000008 7T - = 100 100 PDEEFEER
HK$20,000,000 Distribution of
broadband business
AK#80,00000075 - = 100 100 SERDHEK
RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distnbution
of wind turbine generators
ARE50,0000007T - = 95 95  BERHBEEREK
RMB50,000,000 90

Manufacture and distnbution
of wind turbine generators
and blades
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

42. TEMBAT - BELTR

EELESEH o

ALk

Name of company

WEBAR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

EREZMRAE : (8)
Registered and operating
in the PRC: (Continued)

REEMAERESHHARLT
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Matenials Co. Ltd

HREREE T (R BRAT

ERMAERRBEREALT
Bejing CASC Energine Wind
Turbine Co. Ltd*

HBMABRRERBRERRLA

HBMABERAERAEARAR

174 TERXERER(KE) FRAF
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

BRTEERAZ
HE/ A BARgGE B
Nominal value of RDRHE% REEE®%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capital/ held by attributable
registered capital the Company to the Group

2013 2012 2013 2012

% % % %

AR%80,0000007C - — 5641 564
RMB80,000,000
AR%30,0000007C - — 100 100
RMB30,000,000
AR% 10,0000007T 65 65 - —
RMB10,000,000
AR#80000,0007C - — 100 100
RMB80,000,000
AR 200000007 - — 100 60
RMB20,000,000

TEXE

Principal activities

HERDHEMER
Manufacture and distribution

of wind blades

HWERAHENER
Manufacture and distnbution
of telecommunication
products

DIEEBER

Distribution of wind

turbine products

HER AR
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine generators

RS
Rental of properties



42. TEMBAT - BEATR
BELESEH @)

LE%R

Name of company

BELT

Associates

RABEmALRAEE -

Registered and operating in the PRC:

THERENETARLA

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd*

EHEER R TARAT

FRESFERRARNERAT

EHRAERTANERBRAA
Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali Electricity Co,, Ltd*

EMRXERENEEERAF)

Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co,, Ltd.

PN EE A YN
Suzhou Aerospace TITP Wind
Power Technology Co, Ltd.

=pup i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= F S A=A
For the year ended 31 December 2013

+—=

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

BRTEERAZ

HE/ R BAgGE B

Nominal value of RARHE% REEER%

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capital/ held by attributable

registered capital the Company to the Group
2013 2012 2013 2012

% % % %

AR 3333200007 - — 25 25

RMB333,320,000

AR 4382000007 - — 1535 1535

RMB438,200,000

AR 150,0000007C - — 20 20

RMB150,000,000

AR% 1200000007 - — 41T 417

RMBI20,000,000

AR 1710700007 - — 4878 48.78

RMBI71,070,000

AR% 130,0000007T - — 4128 418

RMBI30,000,000

TEXR

Principal activities

REE

Operation of wind farm
&R

Operation of wind farm
BHER

Operation of wind farm
RERD AR
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine generators
B5EY

Operation of wind farm
RERD HERER
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine products
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42. TEMBAT - BELTR

EELESEH o

AL

Name of company

RELE
Joint ventures

ReBEmaLREE
Registered and operating in the PRC:

IRERREREDRERARARLT
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine
Management Systems Co, Ltd*

ERERRERETHRRARAR
Beijing Wanyuan - Henniges Sealing
Systems Co, Ltd

THEMABREEXELERR LA
Jiangsu CASC Energine Wind
Turbine Manufacture Co, Ltd*

RREAEBERHERERAF

176 TEMXERER(KE) FRAFE
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

BRTEERAZ

HE/ R BARgGE B

Nominal value of RDRHE% REEE®%

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capital/ held by attributable

registered capital the Company to the Group
2013 2012 2013 2012

% % % %

16000000% 7T - — 49 49

US$16,000,000

AR #1000000007C - - - 40

RMB100,000,000

ARH1000000007C - — 50 50

RMB100,000,000

AR 926100007 - = 49 49

RMB92,610,000

TEXE

Principal activities

WEREYHUEEZR
Manufacture of automotive
engine management systems

and components

HEBGRHESR
Manufacture of automotive
sealing products

SIS
Manufacture of wind turbine

EEE
Operation of wind farm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. TERBAT  BEATR

EELESEH o

9 RAEEFMZRIEEREDE -

o PRREERZ 2INERE -

o RZT—=F+-A=+—H0 K&
BERYEZIZAREEENEE
ERMEESZ - @AM ARAEER
EAREBHZARBEEATES
Wz RRAEAREBES 5% 2 B

BN B 2 AAS  ARERA L
ARRRD BRI RZSRAIRTZE
AR o

EERA  LHIRRFRZAAANE
AR BEAARAELE  DHER
EEEEREEL TBAALAER
AEBZAEFEZ TEHS - BB
B RAEMHEANRMEAT L E
B S AEBRITE -

iy

BEREHEK  HEDQAMERITER
EIRE S ©

v

ko

B E—=F 1 A=1—HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/3

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

# Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.

i Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

##  The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out

of nine directors to the board of directors of this company as at 3|
December 2013. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has significant influence over the company. Accordingly, the
company is accounted for as a 15% owned associate of the Group.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued by

those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period.
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BE_F=F1_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2013

42. TERBAT BEATR
ELESH »)

RBEEHR  ARAHEHAKEES
AREZEMWBAR - ZZEMBLA
ZEBEBHAMT -

FTEXRE

Principal activities

RERNZERBER
Manufacture of wind energy related products
R5EE

Operation of wind farm

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. A majority of these subsidiaries
operate in Chinese Mainland. The principal activities of these subsidiaries

are summarised as follows:

TEEEME

Principal place HEASHE

of business Number of subsidiaries
2013 2012

B A

Chinese Mainland 4 4

B A

Chinese Mainland 2 2

AABEERR F2EMBARZHE
EH| R ERN TS TBERX -

TEMABRER(KE) BRAR
2013 F 3§

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the non-controlling
interests of non-wholly owned subsidiaries are all individually not

material.
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#

BRARBRERREARAMBERRERZE

FRAXABMBRRARZE

BE—F=F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/3

43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

ke the end of the reporting period includes:
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
EEEE Fixed assets 85 112
NG Interests in subsidiaries 1,387,319 1,387,319
Hofth FE R Other receivables 3,750 1,470
= NGIE O] Amount due from subsidiaries 210,193 221,050
FEU R KT8 A B RRIA Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries — 7,606
A HESRmEE Available-for-sale financial asset —_ 34,560
Be RRITER Cash and bank balances 70,630 21,443
BERE Total assets 1,671,977 1,673,560
H A 3R Other payables 7,173 8,300
BESE Net assets 1,664,804 1,665,260
BEARRIEE Capital and reserves
[P Share capital 396,900 396,900
A (FiTaE 44) Reserves (Note 44) 1,267,904 1,268,360
ARAIERAEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,664,804 1,665,260
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BE—F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2013

44. KATEHE

44. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

13
EftRE
R EE KRl Asset REER
Share Special  revaluation Retained ot
premium reserve reserve losses Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZZ—=F  AtlJanuary 2012
—A—H 2,483,141 117,554 = (1,418598) [,182,097
AN E Change in fair value of
TREE avallable-for-sale
ATEE financial asset = = (4623) — (4,623)
REZHT Profit for the year — — — 90,886 90,886
REERE Total comprehensive
(R )BA (expense) income
k) for the year = = (4,623) 90,886 86,263
MZZ—=F  At3I December 2012
+-A=+—"H 2,483,141 17,554 (4623) (1327712) 1,268,360
AEHESE  Reclassification adjustment
BESH upon sale of
D ERHE available-for-sale
financial asset = = 4,623 = 4623
rEEBR Loss for the year — — — (5079) (5079)
AEE2EUMA  Total comprehensive income
(R 8% (expense) for the year — — 4623 (5079) (456)
MZZE—=%  At3l December20I3
+-A=+—-H 2,483,141 117,554 = (1332791) 1,267,904

180 TEMABRER(KE) ARAF
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MEERRER
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+T-A=t—-HLEE

Year ended 3|1 December

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
BER Turmnover 663,373 698,083 406,285 989,885 1,329,644
BR A A Al Profit before taxation 77,892 122212 13223 13,354 31,438
HIEX H Taxation charge (7.091) (20,128) (11,318) (7933) (4,049)
AEERF Profit for the year 70,801 102,084 1,905 5421 27,389
W+=A=+—-H
At 3| December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BELS Total assets 3,129,179 3,109,991 3,851,458 4561601 5,204,318
BEpE Total liabilities (1,484,381) (1,350,824) (1,967,067) (2580,408)  (3,237,164)
FEEME Net assets |.644,798 [ 759,167 1,884,391 1,981,193 1,967,154
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From Engine to New Energy

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
PEMXBREER(EE)ERAR

Tel E5E : (852) 2586 1185
Fax {82 : (852) 2531 0088
Email EF8  : energine@energine.hk

Website #83E : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREFBEE18RRIREZITIZATOE
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